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FOREWORD BY THE
CHAIRPERSON
Dr Elias Malete
Chairperson

The Pan South African Language Board
(PanSALB) was established in 1995 by an
Act of Parliament (PanSALB Act 1995 as
amended in 1999) as a language
watchdog in South Africa, as a
constitutional body that has to protect,
enforce, promote and further the
development of all official languages in
South Africa with particular emphasis on
previously marginalised languages.
PanSALB also guards over the use and
development of South African sign
language, Khoe, Nama and San and sees
to the rights of languages commonly used
in South Africa as well as religious
language, as enshrined in the Constitution
Section 6.
Language is of critical importance to all
South Africans. Not only is language the
vehicle for thought and therefore
intellectual development, but also the
enabler of a communicating nation.
Proficient use of language does not only
benefit the user but the country as a
whole. As such, language is a critical
factor influencing education outcomes
and is a determinant of academic
performance. Language forms the basis
of conceptualisation – in its absence
important skills and knowledge cannot be
transferred, not even numeracy skills.
This in turn influences the availability of a
variety of much-needed skills in South
Africa and consequently has an impact on
unemployment in the long term.
As an enabler of communication,
language can hamper understanding
between speakers of different languages.
It is, for example, critical that all South
Africans should be understood and should
understand especially in areas of critical
services, such as health care and law.
Language should enhance equality and
equitability as well as unite South Africans
and not create distances – as such all
speakers of official languages should be

granted the same opportunity to use and
develop their language to the benefit of
the particular language community and
the country as a whole. South Africa has a
unique heritage of multilingualism which
should be nurtured and developed.
Language does not belong to any one
institutional body, but is the joint
responsibility of all South Africans.
This annual report by PanSALB provides
a comprehensive overview for the
2010/11 financial year of a constitutional
institution that continuously strives to
meet its constitutional mandate and
obligation.
Despite our challenges, the period under
review has seen some remarkable strides
towards operational efficiency of the
Board. On 23 July 2010, the Board
elected me as its new Chairperson and
Ms Masindi Sadiki as its Deputy, replacing
Professor Sihawu Ngubane and Professor
Zodwa Motsa respectively. I would like to
extend my gratitude to the outgoing
Chairperson and his Deputy for laying the
foundation for us.
Also, many of the initiatives on best
practice administration that we started in
the previous financial year were brought
to fruition. These and related projects
have culminated in a comprehensive
administration business case and
long-term strategy that will guide the
operational improvement process in
future.
PanSALB’s strategy focuses on its
mandated responsibilities and the
execution of strategic objectives through
its structures established in terms of the
PanSALB Act (Section 8(8) a, b and c).
National Languages Units (NLUs),
Provincial Languages Committees (PLCs)
and National Languages Bodies (NLBs)
work in close cooperation with a variety of
role-players such as universities,
government departments, nongovernmental organisations (NGOs),

community-based organisations (CBOs)
and business.

Service delivery

One of the greatest challenges facing
PanSALB is the production of relevant
terminologies in the African languages in
particular. It gives me great pleasure to
report that the spelling and orthography
rules for the various African languages
were updated and printed and are now
available in booklet form.
We are receiving more linguistic human
rights complaints but I am perturbed that
these are predominantly from one
language group. This clearly
demonstrates a lack of awareness about
linguistic human rights among speakers of
our indigenous languages. We are trying
our best, with limited resources, to give
special attention to this lack of
awareness.

Administration

The erstwhile Chief Executive Officer of
the Board, Mrs Ntombenhle Nkosi, has
been dismissed at the finalisation of her
disciplinary case.
Meanwhile the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer, Mr Chris Swepu, will continue
acting as the Accounting Officer as well.

Conclusion

I wish to thank my fellow Board members
for providing the necessary political and
strategic guidance. Also, my appreciation
goes to the Accounting Officer and his
staff for their commitment to ensuring that
PanSALB delivers on its constitutional
mandate.

Dr Elias Malete
Chairperson
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ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S
OVERVIEW
Mr Chris Swepu
Acting Chief Executive Officer

1. CEO’s Report

It is an honour for me once again to
present an annual report to the
nation. We present this Annual
Report amidst some fundamental
difficulties experienced by PanSALB
in achieving our constitutional
mandate and applying our
constitutional rights. In the year
under review we have achieved
much for languages and language
communities in South Africa and we
plan to build on this solid base of
past performance in the years to
come. We have many challenges,
which are however not
insurmountable. Some of our
achievements and challenges
include the following:

2. Prudent Financial
Management

I am happy to report that we have
once again been able to maintain
our unqualified audit opinion from
the AGSA. To receive such reports
amidst such financial difficulties is
indeed an achievement worth
tapping ourselves in the back about.
We will continue to improve our
systems to ensure the meagre
resources we have are utilised
optimally.

Although we have sought to
implement to the best of our ability
the Business Plan and the
Organisational Strategy, through
interaction with Parliament we
agreed that perhaps we needed to
fine-tune some aspects of the
strategy to match the resources that
we have been allocated and the
overall mandate of the organisation.

4. Language Act

We look forward to contributing to
the Language Bill so that it is
ultimately passed as an Act of
Parliament. We are hopeful that the
Languages Act will empower
PanSALB to engage stakeholders
on language matters with more
authority. We are also hopeful that
the Act will place PanSALB at the
centre of linguistic issues in our
country as envisaged by the

founding provisions of the
Constitution.

5. Structures

We have continued with our drive to
ensure that all our structures are in
place. We are also in the process of
gazetting PLCs to ensure that they
are optimally functional. We hope
that through their intervention all
provinces in the country will have
Language Policies so that our
communities can enjoy the linguistic
diversity that is enshrined in the
Constitution.
Many of our existing structures are
unable to meet as regularly as
prescribed in the PanSALB Act due
to resource constraints.

3. Strategy and Business
Plan

This was the first year of our
implementation of a new strategy
for the organisation. This was also
the first year of our Annual Business
Plan through which the Board gave
a clear mandate to the organisation.
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6. Support from
Parliament

PanSALB welcomes the recent
establishment of the Office of
Institutions Supporting Democracy
by the Speaker’s Office. We think
this is a positive development for
the much-needed support that is
due to constitutional institutions
reporting to Parliament. The OISD
has already engaged us on a
number of matters of strategic
importance and we appreciate this.

7.Funding

A lack of sufficient funding lies at
the core of obstacles to achieving
our constitutional and legal
mandate. This is by far our most
serious challenge to executing any
given strategy. The budget required
to execute our constitutional and
PanSALB Act mandate is estimated
at R173 million for the 2011/2012
financial year. However, the budget
allocated to PanSALB for the
2011/2012 financial year is only R56
million. This situation is exacerbated
by a current consolidated budget
deficit of R9 million that has to be
funded from the R56 million. The R9
million deficit also impacted on our
Annual Report for 2010/2011, and
the Auditor General accordingly
highlighted PanSALB’s going
concern problems in its report. This
causes concern about PanSALB’s
solvency, liquidity and sustainability.
We have written to the highest
office in the land requesting
intervention in this regard. We await
with eagerness a positive response
so that we are able to deliver on our
constitutional mandate.

8. Delivery Personnel
a. Executive Management
We lack permanency and continuity
at Exco level, where three out of
four Exco positions are currently
held by acting incumbents. This has
negative implications for decision

making, implementation of strategy,
etc. I wish to commend the current
Exco members who are acting in
their positions for their dedication to
their work despite not being
remunerated at the appropriate
levels.

b. Vacancies
PanSALB has a vacancy rate of
43%. Our Languages Business Unit
(which is core to our mandated
obligations) has a vacancy rate of
42% (18 out of 43 positions). As a
result, it is difficult for PanSALB to
perform its core functions such as
research, language quality
assurance, standardisation,
promotion and monitoring of
language development and use,
multilingualism as well as
monitoring of language rights. That
we keep driving this organisation to
greater heights is mainly due to the
commitment of the limited number
of employees we have.

between the office of the CEO and
the Chairperson of the Board have
made it possible for PanSALB to
overcome many challenges in the
year under review.
Now, more than ever, with South
Africa proving to be a country of
potential, a country on the forefront
of growth on the African continent
and an example of the greatness
locked up in diversity, we as
PanSALB want to play our critical
part in developing our nation. We
have in the past done much to
further the development and use of
languages as well as language
rights in South Africa. What we do
at PanSALB is key to unlocking the
potential of all South Africans by
providing through language the
vehicle for economic and social
growth in our country and continent.
This is why we will continue to
improve our performance for the
sake of our country.

9. Multilingualism Awards

We held a very successful award
ceremony and honoured the many
South Africans who contribute in
various ways to the value of
multilingualism and nation building
in our country. The success of these
awards is pivotal as this is one of
the flagship programmes through
which we market the work of the
Board and create awareness about
languages and their usage and
respect. We hope to mobilise
sufficient funding to continue with
this project. I salute those sponsors
who supported us.

Chris Swepu
Acting Chief Executive Officer

10. Conclusion

I wish to thank my management
and the Board for providing me with
the opportunity and their support
over the years. The cordial relations
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1.
1.1

BACKGROUND

Mandate from and its Commitment to
Government

In terms of the Pan South African Language Board
(PanSALB) Act, the mandate of PanSALB is derived
from the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa
(Section 6(5) (a) and (b) of the Constitution of South
Africa), the PanSALB Act and the Public Finance
Management Act (no.29 of 1999).

j)

PanSALB is mandated:
a)

b)

c)
d)
e)

f)
g)
h)
i)

to make recommendations with regard to any
proposed or existing legislation, practice or
policy dealing directly or indirectly with
language matters at any level of government,
and with regard to any proposed amendments
to or the repeal or replacement of such
legislation, practice or policy;
to make recommendations to organs of state
at all levels of government where it considers
such action advisable for the adoption of
measures aimed at the promotion of
multilingualism within the framework of the
Constitution;
actively to promote an awareness of
multilingualism as a national resource;
actively to promote the development of the
previously marginalised languages;
to initiate studies and research aimed at
promoting and creating conditions for the
development and use of (i) all the official
languages of South Africa, (ii) the Khoe and
San languages and (iii) South African Sign
Language;
to promote and ensure respect for all other
languages commonly used by communities in
South Africa;
to advise on the coordination of language
planning in South Africa;
to facilitate cooperation with language
planning agencies outside South Africa;
to establish provincial language committees

and national language bodies to advise it on
any language matter affecting a province or a
specific language; and
to establish national lexicography units to
operate as companies limited by guarantee
under section 21 of the Companies Act, 1973
(Act 61 of 1973), to allocate funds to the units
for the fulfilment of their functions.

In terms of Section 4 of the PanSALB Act the Board is
an independent organ of state, subject only to the
Constitution and its founding legislation, and must
perform its duties without fear, favour or prejudice. All
organs of state are enjoined to cooperate with the
Board and may not interfere with its functioning in the
execution of its mandate.
PanSALB was established in 1995 in terms of the
PanSALB Act 1995, as amended in 1999. The Board
was first constituted in 1997.
1.2
¤
¤
¤

The Purpose of PanSALB is to Promote
Multilingualism in South Africa by:
Creating the conditions for the development of
and the equal use of all official languages;
Fostering respect for and encouraging the use
04 of other languages in the country; and
Encouraging the best use of the country's
linguistic resources, in order to enable South
Africans to free themselves from all forms of
linguistic discrimination, domination and
division and to enable them to exercise
appropriate linguistic choices for their own wellbeing as well as for national development.
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VISION, MISSION, CORE VALUES AND STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

2.1

PanSALB Vision

“To promote and create conditions for the development
and use of all official languages, the Khoi, Nama and
San languages as well as South African Sign
Language and to promote and ensure respect for all
languages commonly used by communities in South
Africa.” (Section 6(5) (a) and (b) of the Constitution of
South Africa)
2.2

PanSALB Mission

We will achieve our vision through:
a.

b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
2.3

Ensuring the monitoring and evaluation of the
promotion, respect for, development and use of
all official languages, the Khoi, Nama and San
languages as well as South African Sign
Language
Promotion of official languages and
multilingualism
Promotion of the provisioning of interpreting
and translating facilities
Ensuring promotion and respect for commonly
used languages
Initiating and commissioning language studies
and research
Ensuring prudent financial management and
effective corporate governance of PanSALB

PanSALB has adopted the following as its
Strategic Objectives for the next three years:
1.

2.
3.
4.
5.

Ensure the promotion and creation of
conditions for the development and use
of all official languages in South Africa
with particular emphasis on previously
marginalised languages.
Ensure the promotion of and respect for
all languages commonly used by
communities in South Africa.
Ensure prudent financial management
and effective corporate governance of
the organisation.
Ensure that PanSALB is strategically
positioned with key stakeholders.
Ensure the building and maintenance
of capability and capacity for the
organisation to deliver on its mandate.
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PanSALB Core Values

PanSALB is committed and adheres to the
following values: QRHATI
¤
¤
¤
¤
¤
¤
3.

Quality Driven
Respect
Honesty
Accountability
Transparency
Integrity
PanSALB STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
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BOARD MEMBERS

Dr Elias Malete

Ms Masindi Sadiki

CHAIRPERSON

Prof Sihawukele
Ngubane

DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON

Prof Mawatle Mojalefa

Ms Grace Gumede

Adv Mandla Mdludlu

Ms Pinkie Sobahle

Prof Zodwa Motsa

Mr Chris Swepu - ACEO

804

EXECUTIVE
Acting Chief Executive
Officer

Mr Chris Swepu

Executive

Acting Executive Head

Acting Executive Head

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CORPORATE SERVICES

LANGUAGES

Mr Sibusiso Nkosi

Mr Lovell Sing

Ms A Netshiheni

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HIGHER LEVEL

MANAGER
INTERNAL AUDIT

Organisational Structure
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr LC Swepu (Acting)

DEPUTY CEO
Mr LC Swepu

EXECUTIVE HEAD/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
FINANCE AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
Mr L Sing

FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT

SUPPLY CHAIN
MANAGEMENT

IT

HR

FACILITIES
MANAGEMENT

NLBs

EXECUTIVE HEAD
CORPORATE SERVICES
Mr SP Nkosi (Acting)

EXECUTIVE HEAD
LANGUAGES
Ms A Netshiheni (Acting)

NLUs

PLCs

Provincial
Offices

COMMUNICATION
AND MARKETING

LEGAL
SERVICES

STRATEGY & POLICY
COODINATION

R&D
Projects
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Finance & Supply Chain

Business Unit: Chief Financial Officer
Strategic objective: Ensure prudent financial management and effective corporate governance of the organisation
Key Performance Area

Supply Chain Management
Division

Performance Indicator

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Actual

Monthly

Achieved. Cash flow was
managed and all payments
were made on time.

Asset register

31 March 2011

Achieved. Asset register
was updated on the BAUD
system on 31 March 2011.

Asset verification or asset
stocktaking report

31 March 2011

Achieved. Asset verification
was done at all PanSALB
offices in the fourth quarter.
Auditors were invited to
attend the verification
process as well.

Asset monitoring and evaluation

1 April 2010

Achieved

Expenditure report

Monthly

Achieved

Payment of contractual obligations

Expenditure report
Ensure the development of
Asset Management System

Payment of asset lease
agreements

Explanation of Variance
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Finance & Supply Chain

Ensure compliance with
PFMA and Treasury
Regulations

Inventory register (purchasing of
inventory and inventory stock
count)

31 March 2011

Partially achieved.
Inventory stock count was
done on 31 March 2011 at
the provincial offices.

Reports (maintenance and repairs,
administration)

Monthly

Achieved. Repairs and
maintenance were carried
out when required. The
landlord did major
maintenance and repairs
during the year at head
office.

Monthly and Quarterly Financial
Management Reports submitted to
Management, EXCO and Board
(Expenditure report)

Monthly

Partially achieved. Some
months’ expenditure
reports were combined.

Budgets compiled, approved and
monitored

31 March 2010

Achieved (the 2010–
2011 budget was
approved by the
chairperson on
31 March 2010. It was
used for the management
expenditure reports in
2010 – 2011)

Medium Term Expenditure
Framework (MTEF)

31 July 2010

Achieved. MTEF template
was submitted to the
Department of Arts and
Culture in July 2010.

(ENE) Estimate for National
Expenditure for 2011 to 2014

9 December 2010

Achieved

Inventory stock count was done with
the auditors in the first week of April
2011. Inventory purchases were
made when necessary.

Some reports combined due to staff
leave and audits being carried out.
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Finance & Supply Chain

Risk

Risk assessment report

January 2011

Achieved late. Risk
assessment report was
presented by PwC to the
Audit and Risk Committee
on 16 March 2011.

Risk assessment service was
provided by PwC. Risk assessment
report was presented to the Audit
and Risk Committee in the fourth
quarter.

Fraud prevention plan

31 March 2011

Partially achieved. PwC
presented the draft fraud
prevention plan to the Audit
and Risk Committee on
16 March 2011.

The fraud prevention plan has to be
presented to the Board at the next
Board meeting.

Audit and Risk Committee
meetings

Attend Audit and Risk Committee
meetings

Four Audit and Risk Committee
meetings for the year

Achieved. Four Audit and
Risk Committee meetings
were held for the year.
Attended all four meetings.

Auditor General (AGSA)

Auditor General Regularity Audit

1 May 2010 to 31 July 2010

Achieved. Received an
unqualified audit opinion
for the 2009/2010 financial
year from the AGSA on
31 July 2010.

Auditor General Interim Audit

1 December 2010 to 31 March
2011

Achieved late. The AGSA
presented their interim
report to the Audit and Risk
Committee meeting on 25
May 2011.

Internal Auditing

Internal Audit (PwC)

1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011

Achieved. Internal audit
progress report was
presented by PwC to Audit
and Risk Committee on 16
March 2011.

Court case settlement

Payment for out of court
settlement with Zululand University

Monthly

Achieved. Out of court
settlement was repaid.
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Finance & Supply Chain

Bank charges

Expenditure report

Monthly

Achieved. Bank charges
are paid monthly.

Compile Annual Financial
Statements

Financial Statements compiled

31 May 2010

Achieved. The Annual
Financial Statements were
submitted to the AGSA and
Treasury on 31 May 2010.

Reliance

31 May 2010
The AGSA issued a Reliance on
other auditors’ work programme that
had to be completed by all NLU
auditors. PanSALB managed this
task.

Achieved

Software maintenance

Pastel software maintenance done
by service provider

Monthly

Achieved

CFO technical support

Technical support when requested

When requested

Achieved

ICT support

BCX contract management

Monthly

Achieved. Calls logged
were attended to by the
service provider BCX.
SLA meetings were
attended.

Attended SiSwati NLU AGM in May
2010.

15

CORPORATE SERVICES

16

Information on Predetermined Objectives

Corporate Services

Business Unit: Corporate Services
Strategic objective:

Build and maintain the capability and capacity of the organisation to deliver on its mandate

Key Performance Area

Performance Indicator

Actual Performance Against Target
Target
Actual

Explanation of Variance

Ensure the development or
review and implementation of
PanSALB Strategic and
Business plans

PanSALB St rategic Plan and
Business Plan
developed/reviewed

30 September
2010

Achieved on 8 November 2010 .
The strategic plan and business
plans were reviewed in the third
quarter and adopted by the Board
on 18 March 2011.

The organisation was still
implementing the new strategy.

Organisation al structure
developed/reviewed and
implemented

30 September
2010

Achieved on 8 November 2010.
Organisational structure was also
reviewed on 30 September and no
changes made .

The organisation was still
implementing the structure it had
adopted the previous year.

Corporate Services
Operational Plan and
Workplans
develo ped/reviewed and
implemented

31 March 2011

Partially achieved. Review
continuing; 70% complete.

Due to lack of personnel in
strategy, policy formulation and
monitoring functions.

Business, Operational and
Management Systems,
Business Processes,

30 September
2010

Partially ac hieved.
Corporate governance structures
and charters were developed on

Ensure the development of
Business, Operational and
Management Systems,
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Corporate Services

25 –26 April 2010.
Draft policy on organisational
development was developed in the
first quarter of 2011 and distributed
for comments and adoption.
Achieved in the first quarter. An HR
system was developed and
reviewed.

Bus iness Processes,
Workflows, Standard
Operating Procedures, Policies
and Procedures

Workflows, Standard
Operating Procedures,
Policies and Procedures
developed

Ensure the development or
review a nd implementation of
the HR Plan

HR Plan developed/reviewed
and implemented

30 June 2010

Ensure the development or
review and implementation of
the HR Plan

Recruitment strategy
developed/reviewed

30 June 2010

Achieved on 30 June 2010.
Recruitment strategy developed in
the first quarter and is part of the
HR plan.

Retention strategy developed
or reviewed

30 June 2010

Performance Management
and Development System
developed/reviewed

30 June 2010

Achieved on 30 June 2010.
Retention strategy developed in the
first quarter and is part of the HR
plan.
Performance Management
Framework reviewed in the first
quarter .

Performance Management
and Development System
implemented

30 March 2011

Partially achieved on 30 March
2011.
Performance system was
developed and implemented and
employees were assessed.

The results of the assessment
were not considered due
to
budgetary constraints.

HRD programmes developed
and implemented

30 July 2010

Not achieved.

No training due to budgetary
constraints.

Ensure the development an
implementation of
Performance
Management System

Ensure effective human
resource utilisation and
development

d
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Corporate Services

Ensure the development and
implementation of efficient
and
effective HR Practices and
Administration

HR Administration System
developed and implemented

30 July 2010

Ensure the development of
employee health and wellness
programmes

Employee health and
wellness programmes
developed and implemented

30 June 2010

Ensure maintenance of sound
employee rel ations

Sound employee relations
practices developed,
implemented and maintained

30 June 2010

Partially achieved on 30 September
2010.

The loading of information into the
sy stems is time consuming.

The system is currently being
installed and put into operation.
Not achieved.

Still being investigated.

Partially achieved.
Grievance procedure exists but has
not been reviewed and updated for
some time.

The lack of a labour relations
specialist in the Human
Resou rces unit contributed to the
situation.
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Corporate Services

Strategic objective: Promote and ensure respect for all languages commonly used by communities in South AfricaEnsure the creation of conditions for the development
and use of all official languages in South Africa with particular emphasis on previously marginalised languages

Key Performance Area

Performance Indicator

Actual Performance Against Target
Target

Ensure enforcement of
legislation/bylaws relating to:
•

Promotion and r espect for
all languages commonly
used by communities in
RSA

•

Creation of conditions for
the development and use of
all official languages in
South Africa with particular
emphasis on previously
marginalised languages

Compliance

30 September
2010

Explanation of Variance

Actual
Not achi eved.
No compliance report.

The suspension of the head of the
legal division affected the
functioning of the division.
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Corporate Services

Strategic objective: Ensure that PanSALB is strategically positioned with all relevant stakeholders

Key Performance Area

Perform ance Indicator

Actual Performance Against Target
Target

Ensure establishment of
strategic partnerships with all
relevant stakeholders

Strategic partnering
framework and guidelines
developed and implemented

30 September
2010

List of strategic partners

30 September
2010

Strategic partnerships
established

31 March 2010

Partnership agreements and
MOUs signed

Ensure the development and
implementation of
communication and marketing
strategy, stakeholder
engagement strategy and
events strategy

Communication and
marketing strategy and plan
developed/reviewed and
implemented

Explanation of Variance

Actual
Partially (95%) achieved.
Draft strategic partnering framework
developed and being finalised for
implementation.
Not achieved.

Partially achieved.

Due to work overload and limited
personnel this key performance
area had to be reprioritised.

The list is still being compiled.

Due to lack of proper monitoring,
at this stage it is difficult to give
the exact figure.

MOU signed with the Independent
Newspapers.

30 June 2010

Achieved on 31 March 2011.
Communication and marketing
strategy and plan
developed/reviewed and
implemented.

Work backlog and the fact that the
organisational strategy and
structure was implemented late.
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Corporate Services

Stakeholder engagement
strategy and plan
developed/reviewed and
implemented

30 June 2010

Partially achieved. Draft
stakeholder engagement strategy
and plan development
80% complete.

Events strategy and plan
developed/reviewed and
implemented

Weekly
updates

Achieved. Events calendar was
updated weekly.

Corporate identity manual
developed/reviewed and
implemented

30 June 2010

Achieved on 30 June 2010.

Publications published

31 August
2010

Work backlog and the fact that the
organisational strategy and
structure was implemented late.

The CI manual was reviewed and
updated.
Achieved. On 31 August 2 000
copies + 500 CDs were produced
and distributed.

Quarterly

Partially achieved. The PanSALB
Newsletter was produced, printed
and distributed during the first and
third quarters.

Bimonthly

Achieved:
March/April 2010
May/June 2010
July/August 2010
Oct/Nov 2010
Jan/Feb 2011
March/April 2011

Only two PanSALB Quarterly
Newsletters were produced due to
budgetary constraints.
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Corporate Services

Ensure that regular and focused
strat egic positioning campaigns
are conducted

Strategic positioning
campaigns schedule

Quarterly

Not achieved

Due to budgetary constraints

Strategic positioning
campaigns conducted

Quarterly

Not achieved

Due to budgetary constraints

23
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Information on Predetermined Objectives

Languages

Key Performance
Area
(1)
Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
promotion and
respect for all
languages
commonly used by
communities in
South Africa or for
official languages
of South Africa
with particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Performance Indicator

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Actual

Framework developed

30 September 2010

Draft framework document for PLCs
developed by 30 September 2011.

Guidelines developed

31 December 2010

Implementation plans
developed
Monitoring and evaluation
tools developed

31 March 2011

Development of documents for Status
Language Planning and Translation and
Interpreting are held in abeyance.
No implementation plans developed.

31 March 2011

Draft monitoring and evaluation tools
developed for NLBs and PLCs.
Tools not developed for NLUs.

Robust information technology
systems established in NLUs
Workshop to ensure buy-in
from provincial managers as
coordinators of PanSALB
structures at provincial level

TshwaneLex installed at the
Sesiu sa Sesotho NLU by 31
December 2010
30 April 2010

Explanation of Variance

System not installed.

Workshop conducted on 23 April 2010. All
provincial managers attended and Work Plans
revised accordingly and queries handled.

It t ook longer than expected to unpack the issue of
respect for languages outside the context of Linguistic
Human Rights and Mediation which is located within
the Legal Division.
Draft document needs inputs and comments from
PLCs and NLBs as well as external s
takeholders
before finalisation. The process is to be undertaken in
2011/2012, funds permitting.
Posts are vacant.
Completion dependent on finalisation of frameworks
and guidelines.
Draft document needs inputs and comments from
PLCs and NLBs as well as external stakeholders
before finalisation. The process is to be undertaken in
2011/2012, funds permitting.
Tools to be develop ed after the revision of the Articles
of Association and Guidelines Document for NLUs
(Version 1).
NLU n ot ready due to budgetary constraints. Funding
provided by PanSALB is not sufficient.
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KPA (1)
Continued

Performance Indicator

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
promotion and
respect for all
languages
commonly used by
communities in
South Africa or for
official languages
of South Africa
with particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Actual

Strategic partnerships
established

Database of
stakeholders available
by 15 May 2010

Databases:
• Provinces submitted by 15 May 2010.
• NLBs developed by 30 November 2010.

Existing partnerships
strengthened

The Star Newspaper: 15 May
2010

University of South Africa
(Unisa)

30 April 2010

Unisa Press

30 September 2010

A new project initiated under Communication
and Marketing.
Support given to Communication and
Marketing on articles.
• Participated in round table discussions
and seminars with PanSALB, making
presentations and proving guidance on
enhancing programmes offered.
• Provided support during the launch of
literature books (siSwati, Xitsonga,
Tshivenda and isiNdebele).
• Discussions on partnership to publish
translated versions of Mandela’s book
Long Walk to Freedom held with Vivlia
Books (Mr N Nemukula: Director) on 15
October 2010 and further discussions with
him and other stakeholders (Unisa Press
and the North West Language Services)
put on hold until 2010/2011.
26–30 July 2010: Partnership through
participation at the IKS Expo by sponsoring the
SASL Interpreting Services and an exhibition
stand for PanSALB. Lang uage products
displayed and handed out (those that are not
for sale). Since the Expo was in KZN, the KZN
office played a major role in collaborating with
other stakeholders on the event and
coordinating PanSALB activities together with
the Language in Education Section.

Vivlia Publishers

Department of Science and
Technology (DST): Indigenous
Knowledge Systems (IKS)
Expo

30 July 2010

Explanation of Variance

The purpose of the Expo was to raise
awareness, understanding and appreciation of
indigenous knowledge systems in South
Africa.

Development of the NLB’s database was dependent
on the finalisation of the induction process for all
NLBs, which was comp leted by 6 November 2010.
Project handed over to Corporate Services u nder
Communication and Marketing.

Clash of times between envisaged stakeholders to be
involved in the project.
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Statistics South Africa (Stats
SA)

10 March 2010: PanSALB participated at the
briefing session for Stats SA Terminology
Project, which will end up with NLBs verifying
and authenticating terminology later in
2011/2012 or early 2012/2013.

Stats SA is one of PanSALB’s partners but for
2010/2011 no project was planned by PanSALB.
However, Stats SA invited PanSALB to the meeting
which PanSALB saw as an opportunity to strengthen
the partnership, and hence honoured the invitation.
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KPA (1)
Continued

Performance Indicator

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
promotion and
respect for all
languages
commonly used by
communities in
South Africa or for
official languages
of South Africa
with particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

University of Johannesburg
(UJ): Languages Unit

Department of Basic
Education

30 June 2010

30 September 2010

Actual
14 May 2010: PanSALB made a presentation on the role
of the Languages Unit in supporting language promotion,
monitoring and creation of conditions for use and
development of official languages, Khoe and San
languages and SASL in order to facilitate the
implementation of the MoU signed in 2009/2010. The UJ
Languages Unit was provided with copies of the Spelling
and Orthography Rules in Sesotho sa Leboa and isiZulu
(two of the official languages of the University).
PanSALB receives copies of the Newsletter of the
Languages Unit.
23 September 2010: Participated and provided support
during the discussion session on “The Role of Language
Policy in Promoting Diversity” at the University of
Johannesburg. The discussion was in celebration of
Diversity Week.
Review of the Curriculum and Assessment Policy
Statements (CAPS): Comments were collated from
internal stakeholders and a report compiled and
submitted to the Department of Basic Education on the
Curriculum and Assessment Policy Statements (CAPS)
documents for review of policy.
Colloquium on Language in the Schooling System, 8
November 2010: PanSALB participated and gave input
regarding strategies to strengthen the implementation of
language policy.

Department of Higher
Education

30 September 2010

NW PLC, 9 February 2011: A meeting was held with the
DDG for Education in the NW regarding briefing the new
MEC for Education in the province. A presentation on
the mandate of PanSALB was made.
June 2010: Support provided through a presentation
made to the Steering Committee meeting in preparation
for the African Languages Roundtable meeting to be

Explanation of Variance
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held in October 2010.
15–20 September 2010: PanSALB participated in the
South Africa-Norway Tertiary Education Development
(SANTED) Close-out Conference. The purpose of the
conference was to assist the Department of Higher
Education to ensure effective transformation of the
higher education sector.
22 October 2010: PanSALB participated in the African
Languages Roundtable meeting held at Unisa.
From the meeting, the Minister of Higher Education and
Training, Hon. Mr Blade Nzimande, made a call to
institutions of higher education to introduce a study of at
least one South African indigenous language
compulsory for students.
24 March 2011: A presentation was made at the
Department of Higher Education to celebrate National
Library Week, with emphasis on mother tongue
education.
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Performance Indicator

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
promotion and
respect for all
languages
commonly used by
communities in
South Africa or for
official languages
of South Africa
with particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Department of Home Affairs

Deaf TV (dTV)

Support provided by verifying and authenticating
characters for the National Register as per the official
languages of South Africa. Characters for Khoe and San
languages are still under discussion by the relevant NLB.
Partnership strengthened with:
• The National Centre for Human Language
Technologies (NCHLT) by allowing partnership to be
established with individual NLUs.
• National Language Service through the involvement
of NLBs in the verification and authentication of
HIV/Aids Terms List.

30 September 2010

Partnership strengthened through a sponsorship towards
the Zwakala Competition held on 22 October 2010:
Promoting Creative Signing among the Deaf.
Partnership not formalised and put on hold until
2011/2012. However, PanSALB through the KZN Office
provided support by making a presentation (by Ms Asha
Udith of the SASL NLB and KZN PLC) at the Conference
on KZN Deaf Language Policy held on 31 July 2010 at
VN Naik School for the Deaf in Durban.
PanSALB continued giving support to the Microsoft
projects in Sesotho sa Leboa, Setswana, Afrikaans,
isiXhosa and isiZulu on the following:
• IT Terminology Development and quality check for
Windows 7 for the Interface Pack
• The Office Lip Project comprising these
components: Office Glossary Terms (updated with
150 terms), Language Review, Policheck signed off
for Software and UA and Language Sign off.
PanSALB continued to strengthen partnership with
SABS by participating in meetings for the year.

KZN Blind and Deaf
Association

31 December 2010

Microsoft

31 March 2011

South African Bureau of
Standards (SABS)
SABC NW

Actual

30 June 2010

Department of Arts and
Culture

Explanation of Variance

29 March 2011: The SABC NW Language Unit held a
meeting with the NW Provincial Office to discuss
language imperatives for the established Language Unit.

Khoe and San characters were not finalised
due to the moratorium on projects.

Meeting could not be scheduled due to a
moratorium on projects and other activities.
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KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
promotion and
respect for all
languages
commonly used by
communities in
South Africa or for
official languages
of South Africa
with particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

MECs (Sports, Arts, Culture
and Recreation)

Nine provinces by
31 March 2011

Explanation of Variance

Actual
New Partnership established and MoUs
signed:
Mpumalanga PLC (M PLC)
Partnership was established with the MEC for
Arts and Culture and an MoU was signed.
Flowing from the MoU, the (M PLC) received
R100 000 funding for meetings and projects.

MoUs with other Provincial Departments of Sport, Arts,
Culture and Recreation could not materialise because
of changes in MECs and HoDs.
PanSALB is still in the process of drafting a standard
MoU to be used in partnerships with MECs for Arts
and Culture.

Western Cape
PanSALB established partnership with the
Western Cape Office of the Public Protector
and an MoU was signed on 23 June 2010.
Strengthening of existing partnerships
Eastern Cape PLC
Partnership established with the Eastern Cape
Department of Sports, Arts, Culture and
Recreation on the implementation of joint
projects. Eastern Cape PLC received R70 000
for projects.
Free State PLC (FS PLC)
The PLC continued to be funded by the
Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and
Recreation by receiving an amount of
R100 000.
Limpopo PLC (L PLC)
The Limpopo PLC received funding of R100 000
from the Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and
Recreation .
North West PLC (N W PLC)
A meeting was scheduled with the MEC for the
Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and
Recreation for 3 February 2011 but did not
materialise. The purpose of the meeting was to
strengthen partnership regarding collaborative
governance for the three structures in the

Meeting not confirmed by the MEC’s office.
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Province – NW PLC, Setswana NLB and
Sefala sa Setswana NLU.

Municipalities (Department of
Cooperative Governance and
Traditional Affairs)

31 March 2011

Northern Cape PLC
Meetings held with the following stakeholders
within the province towards establishing
partnerships:
Department of Health
Department of Safely and Security
Department of COGHSTA
National Institute of Higher Education
Provincial Legislature
Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and
Recreation
AKTV IEC
Northern Cape PLC
Meetings held with the following stakeholders
within the Province towards establishing
partnerships:
Department of Health
Department of Safely and Security
Department of COGHSTA
National institute of Higher Education
Provincial Legislature
Department f Sport, Arts, Culture and
Recreation
AKTV IEX
Eastern Cape PLC
The PLC presented the isiXhosa Greater
Dictionary to Nyandeni Great Place as part of
the initiative to provide the sets to all
amaXhosa Kingdoms as custodians of the
language who can assist in language
promotion.
KZN PLC
Arrangements were made to visit the Sisonke
Municipality on 17 June 2010, but the
municipality cancelled the meeting. No other
appointment could be secured.
Mpumalanga PLC
The Mpumalanga Provincial Office visited the
Emakhazeni, Thaba Chweu, Dr J S Moroka
(strengthen the existing partnership), Steve
Tshwete and Thembisile municipalities in the
2010/2011 financial year with the aim of
establishing a working relationship and to

Partnerships with municipalities were not formalised to
the point of achieving signed MoUs due to changes in
government during elections.
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advise on the need to develop language
policies.

Libraries

31 March 2011

Correctional Services

31 December 2010

Commission for the Protection
of Cultural, Religious and
Linguistic Human Rights of
Communities of South Africa
(CRL Commission)

In November 2010, PanSALB participated in
discussions and gave inputs on PanSALB’s
perspective regarding issues of cooperation
and overlaps with CRL Commission and other
stakeholders servicing the same target groups
on language issues.

Programmes and Projects
Implemented:
Establishment of Reading
Clubs

On 29 March 2011, the office attended a
meeting with Thembisile Municipality with the
purpose of introducing the Kwaggafontein
Branch of the isiNdebele Reading Club and to
request the library to assist by providing a
reading corner for the club.
Partnership with the National Library
strengthened through participation at the
launch of the national Library Week in March
2011.
Support provided to the Tshwane
Municipality’s Library and Information Services
through participation at the national Library
Week celebration where a presentation was
made on the importance of literature and
media in the development and promotion of
African languages.
Partnership with Emalahleni Correctional
Service
On 3 March 2011, the Mpumalanga Provincial
Office held a meeting with Emalahleni
Correctional Service at Paxton. The aim of the
meeting was to establish a working
relationship and to establish a Reading Club to
encourage inmates to adopt a culture of
reading. The importance of the instruction to
have a language policy was also touched
upon.

12 new Reading Clubs by 31
December 2010

Eastern Cape PLC and isiXhosa NLB
Launched a Reading and Writing Club at
Whisttlesea Correctional Services.
Gauteng PLC
Four Reading Clubs were established:
• Groenpunt Correctional Centre on 25
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•
•
•

August 2010
Boksburg Correctional Centre on 17
September 2010
Johannesburg Correctional Services on 7
October 2010
Modderbee Correctional Centre on 8
October 2010.

Limpopo PLC
Established the following Reading Clubs in the
districts indicated:
• Modimolle Correctional Centre on 9 April
2010 in Waterberg
• Maebe Primary School in Sekhukhune on
28 May 2010
• Soutspanberg Laerskool in Vhembe on 31
May 2010
• Makhado Correctional Centre on 4 June
2010
• Hlayisani Primary School on 21 July 2010
• Mamahlo Primary School
• Mamakgatlape Primary School on 5
October 2010
• Melkrivier Primary School on 26 October
2010
• Titirheleni Primary School on 2 November
2010
• Renosterkloof Primary School on 11
November 2010
• Mandiwana Primary School on 12
November 2010
• Kgwadu Primary School on 3 February
2011
North West PLC
Launched Reading Clubs at:
• Rooigrond Correctional Centre on 20
August 2010
• Rustenburg Correctional Service on 26
August 2010
• Mafikeng Correctional Service on 21
September 2010
• Mogwase Correctional Centre on 6
October 2010; office bearers of the
Reading Club elected
• Tlokwe Correctional Service Centre on 13
October 2010
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Maintenance and support as
well as monitoring of Reading
Clubs

Six reading clubs supported
(four old and two new)

Western Cape PLC
Reading Clubs established at:
• Imbumba Seniors in Kalkfontein
• Laphumilanga Seniors in Du Noon on 13
August 2010
• Nomzamo Seniors in Langa township on 3
October 2010
A workshop for all three old age homes was
held on 20 August 2010.
isiNdebele NLB
A meeting was held with the Siyabuswa
Reading Club branch at the Siyabuswa Library
on 25 February 2011. The meeting was
attended by the Mpumalanga Provincial
Manager, Mr B D Mohlamonyane.
Limpopo PLC
Ten reading clubs monitored (Kutama
Sinthumule, Makhado, Mashau, Pulamadibogo, Renosterkloof, Mamakgatlape,
Xirhulurhulu, Hlayisanani, Soutpansberg and
Titirheleni.)

Promotion of reading culture

Mother-tongue Reading
Competition, 15 March 2011

North West PLC
•
Reading materials and books donated to
the Rooigrond reading clubs.
•
No books donated to Rustenburg
Correctional Service.
•
Reading materials (newspapers and
books) provided through the efforts of the
Provincial Manager, Mr M K Molebaloa,
who collected these from the public.
•
Books donated to the Tlokwe Correctional
Service Reading Club.
•
Books donated to the Mogwase
Correctional Centre Reading Club.
Eastern Cape PLC
On 23 June 2010, the PLC participated in the
Provincial WordFest and sponsored
certificates to Word Artists who performed
during the festival.
Eastern Cape PLC (EC PLC) and isiXhosa
NLB
On 29 to 30 November 2010 the two structures
in cooperation with the EC Department of

Budgetary constraints and insufficient number of
books were received from donors. These could not
cover all reading clubs.

For the WordFest, 105 artists were expected and 130
turned up. This could be attributed to the popularity of
the event.
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Education and the EC Department of Sport,
nd
Arts, Culture and Recreation co-hosted the 2
S E K Mqhayi National Conference on
language development and promotion.
Limpopo PLC
Hosted a reading, listening and writing
competition on 8 November 2010.
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KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
promotion and
respect for all
languages
commonly used by
communities in
South Africa or for
official languages
of South Africa
with particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Translation and Interpreting
International Translation Day
Celebration

14 October 2010
(all provinces)

Explanation of Variance

Actual
Eastern Cape PLC
Hosted the event on 8 October 2010.
Attendance was poor because the event was
in town.
Free State PLC
The event was celebrated in cooperation with
the FS Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and
Recreation in Mantsopa on 28 to 30
September 2010.
Gauteng PLC
The event was celebrated on 21 September
2010 in collaboration with Tshwane University
of Technology and on 22 September 2010 the
event was celebrated in collaboration with
Ekurhuleni Municipality.
KZN PLC
On 3 August 2010, the PLC in collaboration
with the KZN Department of Arts and Culture
held a Language Policy, Translators and
Interpreters Workshop at the Durban
University of Technology. The purpose of the
workshop was to assist KZN government
departments with language policy
development, raise awareness of the need to
establish language units as well as draw up an
action plan, launch the Translators and
Interpreters Training Manual as well as raise
awareness of linguistic human rights.
A report on the Enquthu Research Project on
the Sesotho Language was submitted. The
KZN Department of Education is to be advised
to include the Sesotho language in schools in
the area.
Event was not celebrated.

Other stakeholders were available on this date and no
other.

A number of municipalities could not attend.

Preparations hampered by a misunderstanding on
technicalities.
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Limpopo PLC
The event was celebrated on 29 October 2010
Mpumalanga PLC
The PLC hosted a Translation and Interpreting
Workshop in partnership with Emakhazeni
Municipality at the Beyers Naude Hall in
Middelburg on 8 October 2010.
Northern Cape PLC
• COGHSTA Small Scale Office Based
Translations meeting held on 1 October
2010
• Translation and Interpreting Seminar
hosted on 14 and 15 October 2010.
North West PLC
The event was hosted in partnership with the
North West University on 9 October 2010.

Deaf Awareness Week

Five provinces by
31 October 2010

Western Cape PLC
Two events were celebrated, on 2 August
2010 and 30 September 2010, with the latter
taking place at the University of Stellenbosch.
Gauteng PLC
Deaf Awareness Workshop conducted at five
municipalities (Midvaal, Mogale City, Lesedi,
City of Tshwane and City of Johannesburg) on
6 to 10 September 2010.
Mpumalanga PLC
On 30 Sep 2010 PanSALB and DeafSA
participated in an advocacy campaign to
promote SASL in the community of
Emalahleni. The meeting started at DeafSA’s
offices and with the help of City Police the Big
Walk of deaf people proceeded to the
municipality.
A memorandum of demands by the deaf was
handed over by the Director of DeafSA
Mpumalanga, Mr C. Nair.

Grade 12 Awards Ceremony

Two provinces by
31 March 2011

Free State
Awards presented at the Matric Well Done
Function hosted by the FS Department of
Education.

Venue not available due to staff commitments as a
result of strikes. The problems could not be
anticipated.
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31 March 2011

Gauteng PLC
Event hosted on 26 November 2011 at Mogale
City Local Municipality where presentations
were made and information brochures and golf
shirts were handed out to delegates.
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KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
creation of
conditions for the
development and
use of official
languages with
particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Actual

Framework developed

30 September 2010

Draft frameworks developed

Guidelines developed

31 December 2011

The following documents were drafted:
Literature and Media:
• Guidelines for National Language Bodies on Operational
Matters
• Guidelines on Reading and/or Writing Clubs in
Communities
• Guidelines on Mother Tongue Reading Competition
• Guidelines for Budding Authors
• Guidelines on the Monitoring and Evaluation of books:
Document not developed
Language in Education:
• Guidelines on the role and functions of the NLBs’
Language in Education Technical Committee
• Guidelines on Parent Involvement Project
• Guidelines on Career Exhibition Project
• Guidelines on Creative Writing Project

Implementation plans
developed

31 March 2011

Explanation of Variance

No implementation plans developed

* Literature and Media: Evaluation and Monitoring Tool for
the PanSALB Reading and Writing Clubs

Draft document needs inputs and
comments from PLCs and NLBs as well
as external stakeholders before
finalisation. The process is to be
undertaken in 2011/2012, funds
permitting.
Draft documents need inputs and
comments from PLCs and NLBs before
finalisation. The process is to be
undertaken in 2011/2012, funds
permitting.

This area is highly contested by different
stakeholders and needs to be budgeted
for properly so that relevant stakeholders
are involved from the start of the project
for PanSALB to get a buy-in.
Draft documents need inputs and
comments from PLCs and NLBs before
finalisation. The process is to be
undertaken in 2011/2012, funds
permitting.
No documents were developed for
Standardisation and Terminology,
Translation and Interpreting and Status
Language Planning because of
vacancies of the relevant posts.
Completion dependent on finalisation of
frameworks and guidelines

*

There was a pressing need for the tool
to be developed to facilitate Monitoring
and Evaluation of Clubs from 2011/2012.

40

Information on Predetermined Objectives

Languages

KPA (2)
Continued

KPIs

Quarters 1 to 4Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
creation of
conditions for the
development and
use of official
languages with
particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Articles of Association for
NLUs revised
Programmes and Projects
Implemented:
Literature and Media:
Workshop for Budding Writers

Explanation of Variance
Actual

31 March 2011

Document not revised.

One workshop by
31 December 2010

isiNdebele NLB
On 20 and 27 November 2010, the NLB conducted a
literature development workshop for budding writers at
Monsterius (Apostolic Faith Mission) in KwaDlawulale
(Limpopo Province), and at Mafu Senior Secondary
School in Kwaggafontein A (Mpumalanga Province).

Vacancy in the Legal Division and financial
constraints on outsourcing services.

The two NLBs bought into the idea and there
was no way of denying them the opportunity.

Tshivenda NLB
One workshop held at Kutama-Sinthumule
Correctional Centre on 16 July 2010.
Izwi LoMzukazwe (isiZulu NLB
Journal)

Language in Education
•
Creative Writing
Workshop (Khoe and San
Languages)

Journal registered and
accredited by 15 March 2011.
At least four articles collected
and referred and journal
published by
15 March 2011.

isiZulu NLB
Journal not registered.

One workshop by 31
December 2010

Khoe and San NLB
No workshop conducted.

Project not implemented due to the
moratorium on projects.

Articles put in abeyance and journal not published.

Free State PLC and Sesotho NLB
The Creative Writing Competition (pilot project for four
Primary Schools) was held. Initially, five schools were
to participate, but one school failed to meet the set
deadlines and was subsequently disqualified.
Successful schools were given awards.
Limpopo PLC
On 17 August 2010, the PLC hosted a Creative Writing
Workshop at Tshilidzini Special School in Shayandima
in the Vhembe District.

Project not implemented due to the
moratorium on projects.
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•

Western Cape PLC
One Creative Writing Workshop was hosted in
collaboration with three primary schools (Impendulo,
Masiphumele and Noxolo).

Career Exhibition

Mpumalanga PLC
On 17 March 2011, a Career Exhibition was conducted
in Mpumalanga at J S Moroka Municipality in
Nokaneng per request and invitation from the
municipality. Guidance was provided to learners on
language career choices by the Language in
Education Section Manager, Mrs J M Mathibela.
Western Cape PLC
Three Career Exhibitions were held, one at each
venue: University of Cape Town, Cape Peninsula
University of Technology on 17 April 2010, and the
University of the Western Cape on 6, 7 and
8 May 2010.
Standardisation and
Terminology
•
Revision of Spelling and
Orthography Rules

NLBs by 31 March 2011

15 March 2011

Tshivenda NLB
5 August 2010: The NLB hosted a Seminar on
Translation which focused on Translation and
Maintaining the Tshiven a Idiom, Translation and
Religion as well as Translation in Literature. The aim
was to assist language practitioners to improve their
translation skills.
One of the key members of the NLB, Mr F C Raulinga
(affectionately known as Ishe Vho-F C Raulinga), who
was instrumental in the development and revision of
Tshivenda Spelling and Orthography Rules as well as
a legend in language development, passed away in
July 2010.
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Actual Performance against Target
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Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
creation of
conditions for the
development and
use of official
languages with
particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Explanation of Variance

Actual
Afrikaans NLB
Held a meeting from 27 September to 1 October 2010
to work on the conversion and adaptation of the
Afrikaanse Woordelys en Spelreëls to an electronic
format to be made available on CD-Rom and online as
well as to compile a standard grammar of Afrikaans for
international access on the internet.
isiNdebele NLB
On 28 October 2010, isiNdebele NLB established
cooperation with the Limpopo Department of Sport,
Arts and Culture: Language Services with a view to
assisting with terminology development for isiNdebele.
isiXhosa NLB
15 October 2010: Prof N Japhta, a member of the
isiXhosa NLB, made a presentation at a Workshop
Session on Terminology Development Strategies and
the Standardisation Process hosted by the Western
Cape Language Committee.

•

•

Printing of Spelling and
Orthography Rules
booklets
Distribution of Spelling
and Orthography Rules
booklets

Nine marginalised official
languages by 30 November
2010

Printing put on hold for the financial year.
Available booklets distributed to NLB members during
induction (of NLBs) and others at the IKS Expo.
Electronic versions distributed on request to relevant
stakeholders.

Attendance was per invitation from the
Limpopo Department of Sport, Arts and
Culture: Language Services.

Attendance was per invitation from the
Western Cape PLC.

Projects could not be implemented due to the
moratorium on projects.
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Ensure the
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implementation
plans for the
creation of
conditions for the
development and
use of official
languages with
particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Explanation of Variance

Actual

Standardisation and
Terminology

Verification and authentication
of Terminology

15 March 2011

From the partnership with the Department of Arts and
Culture, PanSALB provided support by verifying and
authenticating the HIV/Aids terminology lists.
The siSwati and isiXhosa NLBs verified and
authenticated the lists during September and October
2010.
The following NLBs verified the same terminology lists
in February 2011. The same NLBs will authenticate
the lists during the next financial year.
Sepedi/Sesotho sa Leboa
Sesotho
Xitsonga
Tshivenda
Afrikaans
isiNdebele

These NLBs could not authenticate the
terminology list due to the moratorium on
projects.
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KPA (2)
Continued

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
creation of
conditions for the
development and
use of official
languages with
particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Explanation of Variance

Actual
isiZulu NLB
15 September 2010: The NLB initiated advice
to PanSALB on the isiZulu-English Bilingual
Dictionary published by Oxford University
Press that was due to be launched at Zimbali
Lodge in Durban on 1 October 2010. The
advice of the NLB was that the dictionary
should not be launched due to numerous
mistakes, wrong translations, wrong examples
of usage of entries in sentences and many
more. However, PanSALB felt it was not too
late to stop the launch and instead proposed
that a meeting be arranged with OUP to
discuss these issues and map the way
forward. The NLB accepted this in the spirit of
establishing good working relationships with
OUP and supporting language development
and promotion.
9 and 10 February 2011: The NLB verified
and authenticated the Socioeconomics and
Agriculture Term lists from KZN Language
Services.
Western Cape PLC
On 19 August 2010, a Terminology
Development Workshop was hosted in
collaboration with the Western Cape Language
Forum (WCLF) and the isiXhosa NLB
participated by making a presentation on
terminology development and language
standardisation.

The project was not part of the annual plan but due to
the urgency of issues, PanSALB allowed the NLB to
conduct a preliminary verification of the dictionary and
prepare a brief report.

The project was also not part of the Annual Plan but
was undertaken based on the request coupled with
funding from the client, the KZN Provincial Language
Services Directorate.

45

Information on Predetermined Objectives

Languages

KPA (2)
Continued

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
creation of
conditions for the
development and
use of official
languages with
particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Status Language Planning
Monitoring the establishment
of language units

Monitoring the development of
language policies

15 March 2011

15 March 2011

Explanation of Variance

Actual

PanSALB made a presentation at:
• The Provincial Government
Communication and Information Service
(GCIS) on 6 and 7 December 2010 on the
establishment of language units.
• A Contralesa meeting of Makgo i a of
Limpopo at Bolobedu on the importance
of African languages on 6 March 2011
Eastern Cape PLC
The Language policy of the province is to be
signed in February 2012.
Free State PLC
• The FS Department of Sport, Arts, Culture
and Recreation identified Sesotho,
Afrikaans, English and isiXhosa.
• The Mantsupa Local Municipality has a draft
language policy that has been discussed
and reviewed by stakeholders.
Gauteng PLC
•
From the existing partnership, the
Gauteng PLC co-hosted a conference for
all municipalities on the Development and
Implementation of Language Policies with
City of Tshwane, City of Ekurhuleni and
the CRL Commission to guide other
municipalities on how to draft and
implement language policies as well as
provide guidance on possible projects.
•
A workshop was conducted to introduce
the monitoring plan and tools.
•
Three municipalities were visited (Nokeng
tsa Taemane, Kungwini and Motsweding)
to monitor the status of language policies.
•
Reviewed the Gauteng Provincial
Language Policy Framework and

This was per invitation.

The Naledi Local Municipality could not finalise the
draft language policy due to political instability.
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scheduled meetings and workshops with
stakeholders to monitor and advise on the
implementation of legislation.
KwaZulu-Natal PLC
• Meetings were held with five
municipalities (Kokstad, Mandeni, Ugu,
Umhlabuyalingana and Ethekwini) to
discuss the importance of developing
language policies.
• On 3 September 2010, the PLC
conducted a workshop on language policy
development for 11 district municipalities
and local government departments. One
language policy from the Sisonke
Municipality was received. Other
municipalities had draft language policies.
Limpopo PLC
The PLC reviewed the Northern Province
(previous name of Limpopo Province)
Language Act of 2000.
Mpumalanga PLC
The PLC reviewed draft language policies from
three municipalities: Tshwete (Ekangala
District), Pixley Ka Seme (Gert Sibande
District) and Mbombela (Ehlanzeni District).
Northern Cape PLC
• Two out of four municipalities
(Moshaweng and John Taolo) have draft
language policies.
• A consultative meeting with Magareng
Local Municipality (Frances Baard
District) on 10 November 2010 could not
take place.
• A consultative meeting was held with the
Hon. MEC for Sport, Arts, Culture and
Recreation on the finalisation of the
language policy.
• Held a consultative meeting with
Magareng Local Municipality.
North West PLC
• Meeting held with NW Treasury on 7 July
2010; however, a workshop was not
implemented.

Moratorium on meetings and projects prevented
meeting from taking place.

Unavailability of the Director to finalise arrangements
with NW office.
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•
•
•
•

Moses Kotane Municipality is final ising the
language policy and has conducted a
consultative process with communities.
The Kagisano Local Municipality has a
draft language policy.
The Moretele Local Municipality presented
the draft language policy for adoption on 4
November 2010.
A report on the language policy was made
to the Council of Tlokwe Municipality. A
task team is to be established to deal with
language policy matters.

Western Cape PLC
•
The language policy of the Central Karoo
District Municipality was received and
reviewed in a language policy review
workshop.
•
Theewaterskloof Municipality language
policy guideline was received and
reviewed on 26 May 2010.

Incentives to institutions
promoting multilingualism
Programmes and Projects
Implemented
Language in Education

All provinces/PLCs by
15 March 2011

Essay Writing Competition

One PLC/province by
30 June 2010

Careers Exhibition

Three PLCs/provinces by
31 December 2010
Three PLCs/provinces by
31 December 2010
All PLCs/provinces by
15 March 2011

Parent Involvement
International Mother Language
Day Celebration

All in all, ten municipalities presented their
language policy status and draft language
policies during the Language Policy R eview
Workshop held on 19 August 2010.
Catered for within the PanSALB
Multilingualism Awards Ceremony.

Gauteng PLC
On 28 May 2010, the PLC co-hosted the
Essay Writing Competition Gala Dinner with
the University of Pretoria. Learners were
rewarded and three outstanding learners were
awarded bursaries by the University of Pretoria
to study languages (Sepedi, Afrikaans and
English).
Khoi and San NLB & NC PLC
Eastern Cape PLC
Event hosted on 23 March 2011 at Nyandeni
Great Place and attendance was good – more
than 550 delegates in
cluding traditional
leaders.

Event was adequately advertised in the different
media.
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Gauteng PLC
Event was celebrated on 18 February 2011
instead of 28 February 2011 at Sedibeng
College of Education in collaboration with
Sedibeng District Municipality, Emfuleni Local
Municipality, Inhlanganiso Writers Association,
Gauteng Department of Education: Sedibeng
East District, the CRL Commission and
ArcelorMittal. The purpose of the event was to
encourage the use of mother tongue within the
Department of Education and the participating
municipalities under the theme “ The Positive
Role of Technology for the Promotion of
Languages and Multilingualism”. The event
was aimed at Grade 11 and 12 learners from
schools in the Sedibeng East District.
KZN PLC, and NC PLC
The two PLCs did not celebrate the event in
the respective provinces.
North West PLC
PanSALB attended the event to celebrate
International Mother Tongue Day hosted by
the NW Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and
Recreation.

Called off due to moratorium on meetings and
projects.
PLC could not co-host the event due to the moratorium
on meetings and projects.

49

Information on Predetermined Objectives

Languages

KPA (2)
Continued

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Ensure the
development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plans for the
creation of
conditions for the
development and
use of official
languages with
particular
emphasis on
previously
marginalised
languages

Actual

Translation and Interpreting
Khoekhoegowab Glossary
Project

Last payment to the project by
30 June 2010

Last payment paid and project closed.

Explanation of Variance
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KPA (3)

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Development of
framework,
guidelines and
implementation
plan on
partnerships

Framework developed

30 September 2010

Guideline developed

31 December 2010

Implementation plan
developed

31 March 2010

Explanation of Variance

Actual
Draft framework/guidelines document
developed.

Draft document needs inputs and comments from
PLCs and NLBs as well as external stakeholders
before finalisation. The process is to be undertaken in
2011/2012, funds permitting.

Implementation plan not developed.

To be developed after framework/guidelines are
approved.
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KPA (3)

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Development of
PLCs language
policy
development
frameworks and
guidelines

Explanation of Variance

Actual

Framework developed

30 September 2010

PanSALB Language Policy available.

PanSALB Language Policy document to serve as a
framework document.

Guidelines developed

31 December 2010

Guidelines not developed.

The guidelines document has to be informed by the
provincial language policies, and currently only two
provinces have language policies (Western Cape and
Limpopo).
PLCs had to be consulted on the process and this
could not be undertaken due to the moratorium on
projects.

Implementation plan
developed

31 March 2010

Implementation plan not developed.

To be developed after guidelines are approved.
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KPA (4)

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Development of
PLCs language
policy
development
frameworks and
guidelines

Explanation of Variance

Actual

Framework developed

30 September 2010

PanSALB Language Policy available.

PanSALB Language Policy document to serve as a
framework document.

Guidelines developed

31 December 2010

Guidelines not developed.

The guidelines document has to be informed by the
provincial language policies, and currently only two
provinces have language policies (Western Cape and
Limpopo).
PLCs had to be consulted on the process and this
could not be undertaken due to the moratorium on
projects.

Implementation plan
developed

31 March 2010

Implementation plan not developed

To be developed after guidelines are approved.
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KPA (5)

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Development of
frameworks,
guidelines and
implementation
plan to enhance
multilingualism
and implement
relevant
programmes and
projects

Explanation of Variance

Actual

Framework developed

30 September 2010

PanSALB Language Policy availa ble

Guideline developed

31 December 2010

Guidelines not developed.

Implementation plan
developed
Status Language Planning
Review PanSALB’s document
on multilingualism (PanSALB’s
Position on Multilingualism)
Develop the Monitoring and
Evaluation Tool to Evaluate
Language Policies and
Implementation Plans (for
language policies)
Monitor the promotion of
language policy development
by organs of state
Monitor the promotion and
implementation of the
language policy by organs of
state
Monitor the promotion and
implementation of
multilingualism by organs of
state and implement projects
that promote multilingualism

31 March 2010

Implementation plan not developed.

31 March 2011

PanSALB’s document on multilingualism not
reviewed.

PanSALB Language policy document to serve as a
framework document.
The guidelines document has to be informed by the
Provincial Language Policies and currently, only two
Provinces have language policies (Western Cape and
Limpopo).
PLCs had to be consulted on the process and this
could not be undertaken due to the moratorium on
projects.
To be developed after guidelines are approved.
Section Manager post vacant.

30 June 2010

Section Manager post vacant.

31 March 2011

Section Manager post vacant but work undertaken on
an ad hoc basis.

15 March 2011

Section Manager post vacant.

31 March 2011

Gauteng PLC
On 27 August 2010, a Language Awareness
Campaign was conducted with three
municipalities (Nokeng tsa Taemane, Kungwini
and Motsweding). Another was hosted with the
Mogale City Local Municipality on 26
November 2010.
KZN PLC
An event was planned to conduct an
awareness campaign to coincide with the

The number of people who attended the events was
below what was expected. This was interpreted as a
sign that people still take language matters very lightly.

Preparations hampered by a misunderstanding on
technicalities.

54

Information on Predetermined Objectives

Languages

Reed Dance Ceremony Projects between 9
and 11 September 2010, but could not be
implemented.
Limpopo PLC
Language Day Celebration was hosted on 15
October 2010 at Hlanganani South Circuit,
Vhembe district. The venue was the Assemblies
of God Church.
North West PLC
• On 17 November 2010, a presentation
was made to Language stakeholders at
Kagisano Local Municipality (event
attended by the Speaker, councillors and
other members of organs of state) as part
of the advocacy campaign.
• Presentation made to the NW Department
of Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation and
the Department of Education on the
Status of African languages in the SADC
region.
• On 25 February 2011, the North West
Provincial Office provided support at the
Afrikaans Imbizo (Onderwystaalgesprek).
Western Cape
• A Language Transformation Workshop
was held in collaboration with the Western
Cape Department of Education, Project
for the Study of Alternative Education in
South Africa (Praesa) and school
governing bodies.
• Nine out of 16 Language Transformation
Plan schools were visited.
• A Language Development Workshop was
held in collaboration with the Western
Cape Departments of Cultural Affairs,
Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation,
Centre for the Book, Oxford University
Press South Africa (OUPSA), umHlobo
Wenene FM, Radio Zibonele and other
stakeholders.
• A Braille Workshop was hosted in
collaboration with the University of Cape
Town Disability Unit, where a Braille
Pledge was signed by ACEO and the
Western Cape Premier, Hon. MEC Helen
Zille.
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•

•

Two Nama language interest group
workshops were conducted on 3
September 2010 and 17 September 2010
in Cape Town and in George respectively.
The XHOSAFRIKA Project: The vision of
this project is to promote multilingualism
with a specific aim of collaboration
between isiXhosa and Afrikaans to widen
the footprint of both languages in the
public domain.

56

Information on Predetermined Objectives

Languages

PKA (6)

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Establish or
reconstitute fully
functional
structures and
induct new
members while
ensuring quality
coordination and
support to
structures

Published Board Notices for
public comments

30 April 2010

Actual
NLBs
A Board Notice with names of candidates was published.
PLCs
No new PLC members appointed.
NLUs

Public comments handled and
resolved

31 May 2010

Published Board Notices
appointing members and
removing those members
whose term was terminated

30 June 2010

Explanation of Variance

NLBs
Three objections were received regarding the appointment
of business people into the isiXhosa NLB and one for
SASL NLB regarding the reappointment of a member for
the second term. The Board overruled both objections and
finalised the appointments.
NLBs
Final Board Notices published appointing members of
NLBs.
No Board Notice published with names of members whose
membership was terminated.
PLCs
No Board Notice p ublished with names of members whose
membership was terminated.
Available members whose term of office has expired serve
in interim structures.
NLUs
New members co -opted to serve on the Board of Directors
of the Sefala sa Setswana and Tshivenda NLUs.

Budgetary constraints, and pending a draft
standard MoU clarifying the role of
PanSALB and that of the MEC for Arts and
Culture in the establishment of PLCs.

57

Information on Predetermined Objectives

Languages

KPA (6)
Continued

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Establish or
reconstitute fully
functional
structures and
induct new
members while
ensuring quality
coordination and
support to
structures

PanSALB structures
monitored and evaluated for
effectiveness

Actual
NLBs

New members inducted or
inaugurated by
30 September 2010

Induction of all new members was conducted
between June 2010 and November 2010.
15 March 2011

Explanation of Variance

NLBs
st
The 1 meeting was for induction and all NLBs
were inducted.
The following NLBs managed to hold a general
NLB meeting to plan for the year:
•
Sepedi/Sesotho sa Leboa NLB (20 –22
October 2010
•
siSwati NLB (27–28 May 2010 and 11–12
November 2010)
• Tshivenda NLB (5 and 6 July 2010)
• Afrikaans NLB (Meeting used to
implement the Standardisation TC project)
on 27 September 2010 t o 1 October 2010)
• isiNdebele NLB
• isiZulu NLB
The Khoe and San NLB had a special
Executive Meeting, but could not hold a
general NLB meeting to implement
projects.
In Memoriam
PanSALB lost two key NLB members, Mr R C
Raulinga (Tshivenda NLB) and Dr P B
Skhosana (isiNdebele NLB) who passed away
during this financial year. Both gentlemen were
leading language activist with much -needed
skills, experience and expertise in languages
and whose contribution in the development
and promotion of t heir languages stands out
and speaks volumes.

Induction could not be completed within the set time
due to the unavailability of some of the members
(NLBs are not full-time employees of PanSALB but
serve on a part-time basis).
The performance of structures is monitored through
the quality of the agenda and minutes or reports
until such time that a standard tool is developed.
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Eastern Cape PLC
Gauteng PLC
The PLC had three meetings – one in each of
the first three quarters of the year.
KwaZulu-Natal PLC
No meeting held – but implemented projects.

The fourth meeting could not be held due to the
moratorium on meetings and projects.
There was a technical challenge in the office regarding
a meeting planned for August 2010 to discuss
arrangements for the International Translation Day
Celebration.

Limpopo PLC
• 13–14 May 2010 PLC strategic planning
meeting
• 9 July 2010 special meeting
• February 2011
Mpumalanga PLC
• 20–21 May 2010 meeting to plan for the
year
• 30 July 2010 meeting with MEC for Arts
and Culture in Nelspruit
• 7 October 2010 meeting to prepare for the
Translation and Interpreting Workshop
and other matters
North West PLC
Northern Cape PLC
Western Cape PLC

The fourth meeting could not be held due to the
moratorium on meetings and projects.
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KPA (7)

KPIs

Actual Performance against Target
Target

Develop the
research and
development (R &
D) strategy to
facilitate the
promotion and the
creation of
conditions for the
development and
use of languages
commonly used in
South Africa

Frameworks developed for:
1. The promotion of
languages
2. Ensuring respect for
languages
3. The creation of conditions
for the development and
use of languages
Guidelines developed for:
1. The promotion of
languages
2. Ensuring respect for
languages
3. The creation of conditions
for the development and
use of languages
Implementation plan
developed for:
1. The promotion of
languages
2. Ensuring respect for
languages
3. The creation of conditions
for the development and
use of languages
Research and development
projects that facilitate
promotion and development of
languages with particular
emphasis on marginalised
languages identified

30 September 2010

31 December 2010

31 March 2011

Explanation of Variance

Actual
Not achieved

Not achieved

Not achieved

Budgetary constraints

Budgetary constraints

Budgetary constraints

Database of research
conducted on formerly
marginalised languages due
by 30 June 2010

Not achieved

Budgetary constraints

Business plans by
31 March 2011

Not achieved

Budgetary constraints
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Human Resources

THE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
The Strategic Objective: Build and maintain the capability of
the organisation to deliver on its mandate
The high quality and volume of the work of PanSALB
are still disproportionate to the size of the
establishment. The approved staff complement of
PanSALB is 121, including the newly approved posts
created as a result of organisational restructuring.
However, 39 of these newly created posts were not
filled in the financial year under review due to lack of
funding. Like all organisations that are worth their salt,
PanSALB has a Human Resources Management
function whose task is the strategic and coherent
approach to the management of the organisation’s
most valued assets – the people working there who
individually and collectively contribute to the
achievement of the objectives of the Board’s business.
Indeed Human Resources Division within PanSALB
also has a key role in risk reduction within the
organisation. Part of that risk is non-compliance of the
organisation’s Human Resources Management
function with the relevant legislation and regulations
concerned with the management of employees at all
levels in an organisation.

Job Evaluation
An organisational strategic review process gave
rise to the development of new strategic and
business plans and redefining job profiles,
competency profiles and ultimately job grading,
which determines the relative job weight as a way
of ensuring that work of equal value is
remunerated equitably. To this end, PanSALB
commissioned Yarona Management Consulting
(Pty) Ltd to undertake the grading of all jobs in the
organisation and the latter utilised the JEasy
Manager System to evaluate the identified jobs.
Table 1 shows the number of jobs that were
evaluated during the year under review. The table
also provides statistics on the number of posts
that were upgraded or downgraded.

While the goal of human resource management is to
help an organisation to meet strategic goals by
attracting and maintaining employees and managing
them effectively, it is critical that an organisation’s
Human Resources Division approach seeks to ensure
a fit between the management of an organisation’s
employees, the overall strategic direction of the
organisation and the relevant regulations stipulated by
the country’s laws.
PanSALB has in place policies and procedures for
human resources management comprising several
relevant processes. Together they aim to achieve the
goals mentioned above. These processes include:
Establishing systems, procedures, policies
and
processes that will ensure PanSALB compliance with
the relevant legislation and regulations.
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Table 1. Job Evaluation, 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011
Salary Level

Number
of Posts

Number
of Jobs
Evaluated

% of Posts
Evaluated by
Salary Level

Posts
Upgraded

Lower skilled (Level 1-2)

9

All

100%

9

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

13

All

100%

12

Highly skilled production
(Levels 6-8)

22

All

100%

22

Highly skilled
supervision
(Levels 9 -12)

18

All

100%

17

Senior Management
(Levels 13 -16)

7

All

100%

3

Total

69

63

Posts Downgraded

1

1

2

Note: None of the above-mentioned upgraded posts was implemented during the year under review due to lack funding.
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Employment and Vacancies
Table 2 shows the number posts in the establishment, the number of posts filled and the vacancy rate.

Table 2 – Employment and vacancies by salary level, 31 March 2011
Salary Level
Lower skilled (Level 1-2)
Skilled (Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

Number of Posts
9
13
22

Number Posts Filled
Nil
Nil
1

Vacancy Rate
0%
15,38%
18,18%

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12)

18

1

5,55%

Senior Management Service
(Levels 13-16)

7

Nil

14,28

Total

69

2

53,39%
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Employment Changes
Staff turnover rates show trends in the employment of the organisation. Table 3 shows turnover rates by salary level.

Table 3 - Annual Turnover Rates by Salary Level for the Period 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011
Salary Level

Number of Employees
per Levels on
1 April 2011

Appointments into the
Organisation

Resignations/Retirements

Turnover Rate

Lower skilled (Level 1-2)

9

Nil

Nil

Nil

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production
(Levels 6-8)

13
22

Nil
1

2
4

15,38%
18,18%

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9 -12)

18

1

Nil

5,55%

Senior Management
(Levels 13 -16)

7

Nil

1

14,28%

Total

69

2

7

53,39%
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Employee Relations
Sound labour relations are important for stability in the work environment and for effective performance. The PanSALB management has
over the years evolved into a key and effective player in the resolution of grievances within the organisation and the promotion of good
labour relations. During 2010/11, a total of three grievances and four disciplinary cases occurred. Of the disciplinary cases, one was
resolved amicably. Three disciplinary hearings were held: one verdict is still pending and in the other two cases verdicts have been pronounced.
However, leave to appeal the decisions has been lodged and the matter is still awaiting a final court determination.
Table 4 shows the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the organisation for the year under review.

Table 4 - Misconduct and Disciplinary Hearings Finalised, 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011
Outcomes of Disciplinary Hearings
Number of Employees
% of Total
Dismissal (being appealed)
2
50%
Suspended with pay
1
25%
Case withdrawn
1
25%
Total
4
100%

Performance Rewards
In the past, PanSALB used the Interim Performance Assessment Questionnaire (IPAQ) mandated by DPSA. In 2010, PanSALB adopted the approved Employee
Performance Management Developments System (EPMDS) as a tool to assess its staff. Due to budgetary constraints PanSALB was unable to fully implement the
assessment tool as a measure to reward its staff. Instead, consensus was reached that the old IPAQ system be used.
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Employment Equity
Employment equity targets are prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998.
Table 5 shows the total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in different occupational categories.

Table 5 - Employment Equity as at 1 April 2011
Permanent versus Contract Staff
Permanent Staff
African White Asian Coloured
40
0
0
0
27
0
1
0
Total
Grand
Total
Table 6 shows the employment age profile.

Total
40
28
68

v/s
Gender
F
M

Contract Staff
African White Asian Coloured Total
3
0
0
0
3
1
0
0
0
1
4
72
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Table 6 - Age profile of staff as at 1 April 2011
Age Profile: PanSALB
Age Range
20 – 30
31 – 40
41 – 50
51 – 54
55 and above

No. of Staff
15
34
13
2
8

Total

72

Personnel Administration
Employee records were improved and job descriptions were also updated. Files were created for new appointees and all necessary documents such as copies of identity,
CV, letter of appointment and qualifications were verified and filed accordingly. All leave applications received were captured and filed. Human Resource Division
identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the organisation. Table shows sick leave taken in the period 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010.

Table 7 - Sick Leave, 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010
Number of
Employees

Salary Level

Total
Days

9

Lower skilled
(Level s 1 –2)
Skilled (Levels 3
–5)
Highly skilled
production (Levels
6 –8)
Highly skilled
supervision (Levels

13
22

18

Number of
Employees using
Sick Leave
8

% of Employees
using Sick
Leave
66,7%

Average Days
per Occasion

13

% Days with
Medical
Certification
61,5%

51
55

62,7%
89%

12
19

92%
67,8%

3,92
2,89

60

88%

10

55%

6

1,62
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Table 7- continued

7

Total

9 –12)
Senior
management
(Levels 13 –16)

54

94%

5

71%

69

Training and Skills Development
Due to limited financial resources, the organisation was unable to fulfil its training programme to enhance the skills of the staff.

10,8
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Report on the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Introduction

1. I have audited the accompanying consolidated and
separate financial statements of the Pan South African
Language Board (PanSALB), which comprise the
consolidated and separate statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated and separate
statement of financial performance, statement of changes
in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and the accounting
officer’s report as set out on pages 76 to 100.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
and separate financial statements in accordance with
South African Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the
requirements of the Public Finance management Act of
South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for
such internal control as management determines
necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) and
section 4 of the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act
No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated and separate financial
statements based on my audit.
4. I conducted my audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1111 of 2010
issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December
2010. Those standards require that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the [consolidated
and separate] financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated and separate financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements.
6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

Opinion

7. In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the PanSALB and its subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2011, and their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
South African Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the
requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter

8. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is
not modified in respect of these matters:

Going concern

9. The accounting authority’s report on page 29 and
note 33 to the financial statements indicates that the
PanSALB incurred a net loss of R2 540 000 during the
year ended 31 March 2011 and, as of that date, the
entity’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by R 2
540 000. These conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in the accounting officer’s indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
entity’s ability to operate as a going concern.

Significant uncertainty

10. With reference to note 29 to the financial statements, the
PanSALB is the defendant in a suspension lawsuit. The
PanSALB is opposing the claim, as it believes the claim to
be fraudulent. The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot
presently be determined, and no provision for any liability
that may result has been made in the financial statements
of PanSALB. The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot
presently be determined, and no provision for any liability
that may result has been made in the financial statements.

Additional matter

11. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter:

Unaudited supplementary schedules

12. The supplementary information set out on page 101 does
not form part of the consolidated financial statements and
is presented as additional information. I have not audited
this / these schedule(s) and, accordingly, I do not express
an opinion thereon
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Additional matter

13. In accordance with the PAA and in terms of
General notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government
Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010, I include below
my findings on the annual performance report as set
out on pages 72 to 73 and material non-compliance
with laws and regulations applicable to the [type of
entity].

Predetermined objectives
Usefulness of information:
14. The reported performance information was deficient in
respect of the following criteria:
• Measurability: Indicators are well-defined and
verifiable, and targets are specific, measurable
and time-bound
• Relevance: A clear and logical link exists between
the objectives, outcomes, outputs, indicators and
performance targets
• Consistency: Objectives, indicators and targets are
consistent between planning and reporting
documents.
The following audit findings relate to the above criteria:
Planned and reported indicators are not well defined
(Measurability).
15. For the selected objectives of the planned and reported
indicators were not clear, as unambiguous data
definitions were not available to allow for data to be
collected consistently
Planned and reported targets are not specific and
measurable (Measurability),
16. For all the selected objectives, the planned and
reported targets were not:
• Specific in clearly identifying the nature and the
required level of performance
• Measurable in identifying the required
performance
Reported objectives, indicators and targets are not
consistent when compared with the planned objectives,
indications and targets (Consistency),
17. Additional/different objectives, indicators and
targets were reported on as opposed to the approved
strategic plan and development plan. These
additional/different objectives, indicators and targets
were not included in the approved or adjusted budgets.

Reliability of information

18. The reported performance information was deficient in
respect of the following criteria:
• Validity: The reported performance did not occur

and does not pertain to the entity.
• Accuracy: The amounts, numbers and other data
relating to reported actual performance have not
been recorded and reported appropriately.
• Completeness: All actual results and events that
should have been recorded have not been
included in the reported performance information.
The following audit finding relate to the above criteria:

The validity, accuracy and completeness of
reported performance against indicators and
targets could not be confirmed as
inadequate supporting source information
was provided (Reliability).

19. For the selected objective – ensure prudent
financial management and effective corporate
governance of the organisation - the validity, accuracy
and completeness of 100% of the reported indicators
and targets could not be established as sufficient
appropriate audit evidence could not be provided.

Compliance with laws and regulations

22. Included below are findings on material noncompliance with laws and regulations applicable to
the department.

Procurement and contract management

23. Goods and services with a transaction value of
over R500 000 were not procured by means of a
competitive bidding process as per the requirements of
TR 16A6.1, TR 16A6.4 and National Treasury Practice
Note 6 and 8 of 2007/08.
24. No list of prospective suppliers is kept as per
practice note 8 of 2009/10 paragraph 5.3.
25. Some goods and services that were procured on
quotations were not done on a rotation basis as per
practice note 8 of 2009/10 paragraph 15.3.

Strategic planning and performance
management

26. The accounting officer did not ensure that the
department had and maintained an effective, efficient
and transparent system of internal control regarding
performance management, which described and
represented how the institution’s processes of
performance planning, monitoring, measurement,
review and reporting was conducted, organised and
managed as required by section 38(1)(a)(i) and (b) of
the PFMA.
27. The executive authority of the constitutional
institution did not approve the additional / different
objectives, indicators and targets that were reported on
as required by Treasury Regulations 5.1.1.
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Internal Control

27. In accordance with the PAA and in terms of
General notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government
Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010, I considered
internal control relevant to my audit, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control. The matters reported below are
limited to the significant deficiencies that resulted in the
basis for [qualified/adverse/disclaimer of] opinion, the
findings on the annual performance report and the
findings on compliance with laws and regulations
included in this report.

Leadership
Oversight responsibility regarding reporting and compliance
28. Finance Management did not ensure that the
financial statements was free of material misstatements
and fully compliance with the applicable financial
reporting framework (GRAP)
29. The accounting officer did not ensure that all
policies and procedures were implemented within
PanSALB and internal controls to ensure that
PanSALB is in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations
30. The accounting officer did not ensure that a
system is in place regarding performance management,
which described and represented how the institution’s
processes of performance planning, monitoring,
measurement, review and reporting was conducted,
organised and manage

Pretoria
Date:
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Statement of Responsibility

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Pan South African Language Board. The financial statements presented on
pages 78 to 100 have been prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board and in the manner required by the
Public Finance Management Act. The financial statements include amounts based on judgements and
estimates made by management. The Accounting Officer also prepared the other information included in the
annual report and is responsible for both its accuracy and its consistency with the financial statements.
The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The Accounting Officer
has no reason to believe that the Pan South African Language Board will not be a going concern in the
foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash resources. These financial statements support the
viability of the Pan South African Language Board.
The audit report of the Auditor-General is presented on pages 70 to 73. The consolidated financial
statements were approved and signed by the Accounting Officer on 31 May 2011.

_________________
Chris Swepu
Acting Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Responsibility
Audit and Risk Committee Report
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year
ended 31 March 2011.
Audit committee members and attendance
The audit committee consists of the members listed
hereunder and should meet 4 times per annum as per its
approved terms of reference. During the current year 4
meetings were held.

economic entity during the year under review.
Evaluation of annual financial statements

Audit Committee responsibility

We have:
Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial
statements to be included in the annual report, with the
Auditor-General and accounting officer;
Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa's
management letter and management’s response
thereto;
Reviewed changes in accounting policies and
practices;
Reviewed the entity’s compliance with legal and
regulatory provisions;
Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the
audit.

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal terms of
reference in our charter in line with the requirements of
section 38(10)(1) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.
We further report that we have conducted our affairs in
compliance with this charter.

We concur with and accept the Auditor-General of South
Africa's report on the annual financial statements, and are
of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements
should be accepted and read together with the report of the
Auditor-General of South Africa.

The effectiveness of internal control

Internal audit
We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating
effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to
the economic entity and its audits.

Name of member
Number of meetings attended
Mr A Mooke (Chairperson)
4
Ms T Tusiki
3
Ms K Gaesale (resigned 24/11/2010)
3
Ms F Sadiki
4
Ms P Sobahle
3

The system of internal controls applied by the PanSALB
over financial and risk management is effective, efficient
and transparent. In line with the PFMA and the King III
Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal
Audit provides the Audit Committee and management with
assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and
effective. This is achieved by means of the risk
management process, as well as the identification of
corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the
controls and processes. From the various reports of the
Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the annual financial
statements, and the management letter of the
Auditor-General South Africa, it was noted that no matters
were reported that indicate any material deficiencies in the
system of internal control or any deviations therefrom.
Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal
control over financial reporting for the period under review
was efficient and effective.

Auditor-General of South Africa
We have met with the Auditor-General of South Africa to
ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 31 May 2011

The quality of in-year management and
monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the
PFMA
We are satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and
quarterly reports prepared and issued by the auditors of the
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Statement of Financial Performance
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
Revenue
Government grants & subsidies
Sale of goods
Gifts, sponsorships and donations
Other income
Interest received - investment

Note(s)

2
3
4
5
11

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

53,545
391
1,698
293
888

50,521
602
1,606
786
1,181

53,545
50
470

50,521
224
758

56,815

54,696

54,065

51,503

(51)
(35,441)
(12,773)
(157)
(267)
(16,668)

(262)
(33,174)
(7,583)
(199)
(14,413)

(22,432)
(11,346)
(157)
(267)
(12,610)
(14,268)

(21,723)
(6,231)
(198)
(11,757)
(12,476)

(65,357)

(55,631)

(61,080)

(52,385)

(18)

(175)

(18)

(175)

Deficit for the year

(8,560)

(1,110)

(7,033)

(1,057)

Attributable to:
PanSALB
NLUs

(7,033)
(1,527)

(1,057)
(53)

(7,033)
-

(1,057)
-

Total Revenue
Expenditure
Cost of sales
Staff costs
Administrative expenses
Impairment loss/ Reversal of impairments
Finance costs
Transfers and subsidies paid
Other operating expenses
Total Expenditure
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities

7
7
6
10
9

78

Consolidated

Annual Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2011

Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions
Other financial assets

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other financial assets

12
13
14

1,724
696
931

4,147
737
583

745
172

2,495
186

17

5,281

5,227

-

-

8,632

10,694

917

2,681

5,498
540
269

5,088
273
448

5,145
537
-

4,633
266
-

15
16
17

Total Assets

6,307

5,809

5,682

4,899

14,939

16,503

6,599

7,580

7,967
570
80

2,550
192
-

7,206
570
-

1,882
192
-

8,617

2,742

7,776

2,074

1,363
3,671

1,015
2,890

1,363
-

1,015
-

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions
Finance lease obligations
Bank overdraft

Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligations
Retirement benefit obligation

18
19
12

19
20

5,034

3,905

1,363

1,015

13,651

6,647

9,139

3,089

1,288

9,856

(2,540)

4,491

PanSALB
Accumulated surplus

(2,540)

4,491

(2,540)

4,491

NLUs

(2,540)
3,828

4,491
5,365

(2,540)
-

4,491
-

1,288

9,856

(2,540)

4,491

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Net Assets

Total Net Assets
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand thousand
PanSALB
Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Change in accounting policy

Accumulated
surplus

6,231
(683)

PanSALB

6,231
(683)

NLUs

Total net
assets

-

6,231
(683)

Balance at 01 April 2009 as restated
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
NLUs surplus adjustment

5,548

5,548

-

5,548

(1,057)
-

(1,057)
-

(1,527)
1,527

(2,584)
1,527

Total changes

(1,057)

(1,057)

-

(1,057)

Balance at 01 April 2010
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
NLUs surplus adjustment

4,493

4,493

-

4,493

(7,033)
-

(7,033)
-

(1,527)
1,527

(8,560)
1,527

Total changes

(7,033)

(7,033)

-

(7,033)

Balance at 31 March 2011

(2,540)

(2,540)

-

(2,540)
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Cash Flow Statement
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Grants and transfers
Interest income
Other receipts

Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Interest paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

53,545
888
2,123

50,521
1,181
3,381

53,545
470
64

50,521
758
369

56,556

55,083

54,079

51,648

(33,885)
(23,968)
(267)

(32,647)
(24,397)
(199)

(23,137)
(31,474)
(267)

(21,181)
(32,893)
(198)

(58,120)

(57,243)

(54,878)

(54,272)

21

(1,564)

(2,160)

(799)

(2,624)

15
15
16
16

(1,385)
51
(506)
43
125
-

(101)
14
(997)
58

(1,265)
51
(496)
33
-

(27)
-

(1,672)

(1,026)

(1,677)

(27)

726

(121)

726

(121)

(2,510)

(3,307)

(1,750)

(2,772)

4,147

7,454

2,495

5,267

1,637

4,147

745

2,495

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of other intangible assets
Decrease in financial assets
Increase in loans receivable
Surplus on consolidation of NLUs
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Net finance lease movement
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

12
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Accounting Policies
The following are the principal accounting policies of the
entity which are, in all material respects, consistent with
those applied in the previous year, except as otherwise
indicated:

1. Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention unless specified otherwise.
The annual financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the effective Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any
interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the
Accounting Standards Board and in the manner required by
the Public Finance Management Act.

liability is raised to the extent that the grant, transfer or
donation is conditional. The liability is transferred to revenue
as and when the conditions attached to the grant are met.
Grants without any conditions attached are recognised as
revenue when the asset is recognised.

1.3 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in
contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of
any applicable legislation, including:
The Public Finance Management Act or
Any provincial legislation providing for procurement
procedures in that provincial government.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that
was made in vain and would have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been
offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by a
Standard of GRAP.

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditures are
charged against income in the period in which they are
incurred.

1.1 Currency

1.4 Retirement benefit costs

These financial statements are presented in South African
Rands since that is the currency in which the majority of the
entity’s transactions are denominated.

1.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that
accrued to the entity directly in return for services rendered /
goods sold, the value of which approximates the
consideration received or receivable.
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
substantially all the risks and rewards in those goods are
passed to the consumer.
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to
transactions where the entity received revenue from another
entity without directly giving approximately equal value in
exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is
generally recognised to the extent that the related receipt or
receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is
no liability to repay the amount.
Grants, transfers and donations
Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are
recognised when the resources that have been transferred
meet the criteria for recognition as an asset. A corresponding

The entity operates a defined contribution plan. The plan is
generally funded by payments from the entity and
employees. Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are charged to the income statement in the
year to which they relate.
The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary
benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period
in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

04

1.5 Property, plant and equipment
Initial recognition
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current
assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to
be used during more than one year. Items of property, plant
and equipment are initially recognised as assets on
acquisition date and are initially recorded at cost. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase
price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the entity. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling
and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is
located.
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Accounting Policies
When significant components of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.
Where an asset is acquired by the entity for no or nominal
consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is
deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date
acquired.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired
in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or
a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the
asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If
the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, its
deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as
property, plant and equipment when the entity expects to use
them during more than one period. Similarly, if the major
spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in
connection with an item of property, plant and equipment,
they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent measurement – cost model
Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and
equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Land is not depreciated
as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.
Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises
the part of the asset being replaced and capitalises the new
component. Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is
capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic
benefits associated with the asset.
Depreciation and impairment
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Components of assets that are significant in relation
to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are
depreciated separately. The annual depreciation rates are
Item
Plant and machinery
Vehicles
Computer equipment
Furniture and fittings
Leased assets
Leasehold improvements
Books

Average useful life
3-15 years
10 years
3-15 years
5-15 years
Lease period
5-20 years
At purchase

based on the following estimated average asset lives:
The residual value, the useful life of an asset and the
depreciation method are reviewed annually and any changes
are recognised as a change in accounting estimate in the
Statement of Financial Performance.
The entity tests for impairment where there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether
there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each
reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated
recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or
recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is
charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.
Derecognition
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised
when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further
economic benefits or service potential expected from the use
of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

1.6 Impairment of assets

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is
any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service
amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment,
04
the entity also: tests intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amount with
their recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed
during the annual period and at the same time every period.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable service amount is estimated for the individual
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable service
amount of the individual asset, the recoverable service
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs is determined.
The recoverable service amount of an asset or a
cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use.
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Accounting Policies
If the recoverable service amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable service amount. That reduction is an
impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if
the recoverable service amount of the unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit. The impairment loss is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit as
follows:
to the assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit.
The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for assets may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
service amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a
reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an
impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a
revaluation increase.
Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset
exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.
The economic entity assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
economic entity estimates the recoverable service amount of
the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment,
the entity also test a non-cash-generating intangible asset
with an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating
intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment
annually by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable service amount. This impairment test is
performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset
was initially recognised during the current reporting period,

that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the
end of the current reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present
value of the non-cash-generating asset’s remaining service
potential.
Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating
asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This
reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or
deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating
asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater
than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset
to which it relates, the economic entity recognises a liability
only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of
GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation
(amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cashgenerating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual
value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful
life.
Reversal of an impairment loss
The 04
economic entity assess at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in
prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists,
the economic entity estimates the recoverable service
amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a
non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is
a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying
amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of depreciation or
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior periods.
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A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating
asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued
non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation
increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the
depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cashgenerating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the
non- cash- generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less
its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful life.

1.7 Leases as lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the
statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value on
the minimum lease payments.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the
minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the
lease.
The lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and reduction of the outstanding liability.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to income on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
betweenthe amounts recognised as an expense and the
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease
asset or liability.

1.8 Intangible assets

Initial recognition
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset
without physical substance. Examples include computer
software, licences, and development costs. The entity
recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial
Position only when it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of the
asset can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict
recognition criteria before they are capitalised. Research
expenditure is never capitalised, while development
expenditure is only capitalised to the extent that:
the entity intends to complete the intangible asset for
use or sale;
it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset;
the entity has the resources to complete the project;
it is probable that the entity will receive future economic
benefits or service potential.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost..
Where an intangible asset is acquired by the entity for no or
nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the
cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on
the date acquired.
Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a
non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of
monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is
initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired
item's fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the
carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite
useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator
that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested
for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is
amortised over its useful life.
Subsequent measurement – cost model
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairments. The cost of an
04 asset is amortised over the useful life where that
intangible
useful life is finite. Where the useful life is indefinite, the asset
is not amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test.
Amortisation and impairment
Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost or
valuation of intangible assets over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. The annual amortisation
rates are based on the following estimated average asset
lives:
Item
Computer software

Useful life
2 - 15 years

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each
reporting date and any changes are recognised as a change
in accounting estimate in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
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The entity tests intangible assets with finite useful lives for
impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of
possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where
the carrying amount of an item of an intangible asset is
greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or
recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount)
and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of
Financial Performance
Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is
disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits
or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
intangible asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.9 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale are classified as current
assets. Immediately prior to being classified as held for sale
the carrying amount of the item is measured in accordance
with the applicable standard. After classification as held for
sale it is measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.
Non-current assets that are classified as held for sale are not
depreciated.

1.10 Financial instruments

Initial recognition
Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent measurement
Financial assets are categorised according to their nature as
either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
held-to maturity, loans and receivables, or available for sale.
Financial liabilities are categorised as either at fair value
through profit or loss or financial liabilities carried at
amortised cost ("other"). The subsequent measurement of
financial assets and liabilities depends on this categorisation
and, in the absence of an approved GRAP Standard on
Financial Instruments, is in accordance with IAS 39.
Impairment of financial assets
At each end of the reporting period the economic entity
assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value
through surplus or deficit, to determine whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets has been impaired.

For amounts due to the economic entity, significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered
indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the
financial asset's recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment
is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus or
deficit except for equity investments classified as availablefor sale.
Where financial assets are impaired through use of an
allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in
surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When such
assets are written off, the write-off is made against the
relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against operating
expenses.
Loans to (from) economic entities
These include loans to and from controlling entities, fellow
controlled entities, controlled entities, joint ventures and
associates and are recognised initially at fair value plus
direct transaction costs.
Loans to economic entities are classified as loans and
04
receivables.
Loans from economic entities are classified as financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are categorised as financial
assets: loans and receivables and are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost.
Amortised cost refers to the initial carrying amount, plus
interest, less repayments and impairments. An estimate is
made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all
outstanding amounts at year-end.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days
overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. Impairments are determined by discounting
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expected future cash flows to their present value. Amounts
that are receivable within 12 months from the reporting date
are classified as current.
An impairment of trade receivables is accounted for by
reducing the carrying amount of trade receivables through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against operating expenses in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
Trade and other payables
Financial liabilities consist of trade payables and borrowings.
They are categorised as financial liabilities held at amortised
cost, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost which is the initial carrying
amount, less repayments, plus interest.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash
with banks (including call deposits). Cash equivalents are
short term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For the
purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call
with banks, net of bank overdrafts.
The entity categorises cash and cash equivalents as
financial assets: loans and receivables.

1.12 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
information of the National Language Units (NLUs), which
are named in Annexure 1, are Section 21 Companies
situated at and administerd by the respective universities in
the 9 provinces of South Africa and were consolidated
according to GRAP 6.
Basis of consolidation
Consolidated annual financial statements are the annual
financial statements of the economic entity presented as
those of a single entity.
The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate
the annual financial statements of the controlling entity and
all controlled entities, including special purpose entities,
which are controlled by the controlling entity.
Control exists as per Section 8 (8) (c) of the PanSALB Act,
which requires PanSALB to establish units to operate as
companies limited by guarantee under section 21 of the
Companies Act, 1973 (Act No. 61 of 1973), and PanSALB
shall allocate funds to the units for the fulfilment of their
functions: Provided that the memorandum and articles of
association of such units shall include the following
principles:
(i) The unit is accountable to PanSALB for the moneys
allocated to it.
(ii) The unit shall abide by the policies of PanSALB.
(iii) The unit shall adhere to the principles of promoting
language development.
The annual financial statements of the controlling entity and
its controlled entities used in the preparation of the
consolidated annual financial statements are prepared as of
04 reporting date.
the same

1.11 Comparative information

Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual
financial statements of the controlled entities who use
Generally Accepted Accounting Policies to bring their
accounting policies in line with those of the controlling entity.

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual
financial statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the
reclassification are disclosed. Where accounting errors have
been identified in the current year, the correction is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year
comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has
been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the
adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable,
and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

All intra-entity transactions, balances, revenues
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Budget information in accordance with GRAP 1 and 24 has
been provided in a note to these financial statements and
forms part of the audited annual financial statements.

and

Minority interests in the net assets of the economic entity are
identified and recognised separately from the controlling
entity's interest therein, and are recognised within net
assets. Losses applicable to the minority in a consolidated
controlled entity may exceed the minority interest in the
controlled entity’s net assets. The excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are allocated against the
majority interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make an additional
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investment to cover the losses. If the controlled entity
subsequently reports surpluses, such surpluses are
allocated to the majority interest until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the majority has been
recovered.

where the link between the funds borrowed and the capital
asset acquired cannot be adequately established. Borrowing
costs incurred other than on qualifying assets are recognised
as an expense in surplus or deficit when incurred.

Minority interests in the surplus or deficit of the economic
entity are separately disclosed.

If the entity receives information after the reporting date, but
before the financial statements are authorised for issue,
about conditions that existed at the reporting date, it shall
update disclosures that relate to these conditions, in the light
of the new information.

1.13 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current
replacement cost where they are held for;
distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
consumption in the production process of goods to be
distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
Where inventory is acquired for no or nominal consideration
(i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be
equal to the fair value of the item on the date acquired.
Inventories, consisting of consumable stores, raw materials,
work-in-progress and finished goods, are valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value unless they are to be
distributed at no or nominal charge, in which case they are
measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.
Redundant and slow-moving inventories are identified and
written down in this way.
Differences arising on the valuation of inventory are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the
year in which they arose. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories arising from an increase in net
realisable value or current replacement cost is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period that the inventory was sold,
distributed, written off or consumed, unless that cost qualifies
for capitalisation to the cost of another asset.
In general, the basis of allocating cost to inventory items is
the first-in, first-out method.

1.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are capitalised to the cost of that asset unless it is
inappropriate to do so. The entity ceases the capitalisation of
borrowing costs when substantially all the activities to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are complete. It
is considered inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs

1.15 Events after the reporting date

If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material
the entity shall disclose the nature of the event and an
estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such an
estimate cannot be made.

1.16 Prepayments

Prepayments are recognised when the resources that have
been transferred meet the criteria for recognition as an asset.

1.17 Standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following GRAP standards have been issued but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the entity:
GRAP 18- Segment Reporting - issued March 2005. This
new standard of GRAP: establishes principles for reporting
financial information by segments. The impact of
implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in
the context of this entity's operations and the enity is not
required to apply this standard.
GRAP
0421- Impairment of non-cash-generating assets issued March 2009. This standard prescribes the procedures
to be applied when determining whether a noncash-generating asset is impaired and to ensure that
impairment losses are recognised. The standard also
specifies when an entity would reserve an impairment loss
and prescribes the required disclosure. The impact of
implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in
the context of the entity's operations.
GRAP 23- Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers) - issued February 2008. This
prescribes the requirements for the financial reporting of
revenue arising from non-exchange transactions, other than
non-exchange transactions that give rise to an entity
combination. The standard deals with the issues that need to
be considered in recognising and measuring revenue from
non-exchange transactions, including the identification of
contributions from owners. The impact of implementing this
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standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of this
entity's operations.
GRAP 24- Presentation of Budget Information in Financial
Statements - issued November 2007. This new standard of
GRAP deals with the presentation and disclosure of budget
information as required by GRAP 1. The impact of
implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in
the context of this entity's operations.
GRAP 25- Employee Benefits – issued March 2009. This
new standard of GRAP deal with the requirements around
accounting and disclosure of employee benefits including
short-term, long-term and post-retirement employee
benefits. The impact of implementing this standard is
expected to be immaterial in the context of this entity's
operations.

constitutional independence of the three spheres of
government in South Africa, only entities within the national
sphere of government are considered to be related parties.
Key management is defined as being individuals with the
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of PanSALB, including those
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with
legislation, in instances where they are required to perform
such functions. PanSALB regards all individuals at senior
management as related parties per the definition of the
financial reporting standards.
Close family members of key management personnel are
considered to be those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, management in
their dealings with PanSALB.

GRAP 26- Impairment of cash-generating assets - issued
March 2009. This new standard of GRAP prescribes
procedures that an entity applies to determine whether a
cash-generating asset is impaired and to ensure that
impairment losses are recognised. The standard also
specifies when an entity would reverse an impairment loss
and prescribes disclosure. The impact of implementing this
standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of this
entity's operations.
GRAP 103- Heritage Assets - issued July 2008. This new
standard of GRAP prescribes the accounting treatment for
heritage assets and related disclosure requirements. The
impact of implementing this standard is expected to be
immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.
GRAP 104- Financial Instruments - issued October 2009.
This new standard of GRAP deal with the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial
instruments. The impact of implementing this standard is
expected to be immaterial in the context of this entity's
operations.

04

Improvements to Standards of GRAP - Effective date:
Proposed 1 April 2012. Improvements are proposed to the
following standards of GRAP: GRAP 1-4, 9-14, 16-17, 19
and 100 as part of the ASB's improvement project. The
impact of implementing these standards is expected to be
immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.

1.18 Related parties

PanSALB operates in an economic sector currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the
South African Government. As a consequence of the
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
2.

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

Grants and Transfers

National Department - Arts and Culture
Provincial department - Sports, Arts and Culture (Note
1)
Department of Health Western Cape
Microsoft (Note 1)

52,871
210

50,156
105

52,871
210

50,156
105

40
424

260

40
424

260

Total

53,545

50,521

53,545

50,521

Note 1:
The grant received from the Provincial department is a conditional grant. All conditions have been met. The full amount has
been expensed during the year. The grant received from Microsoft is conditional and used when translations are required.
3.

Sale of goods

Book Sales
CD-Rom Sales

179
212

478
124

-

-

Total

391

602

-

-

4.

Gifts, sponsorships and donations received

Donations
Sponsorships

1,698
-

1,587
19

-

-

Total

1,698

1,606

-

-

5.

Other income

Royalties
Other income

220
73

171
615

50

224

Total

293

786

50

224

Administration and management fees - third party
Auditor's remuneration

4,193
1,643

4,839
1,643

3,264
1,230

3,738
1,430

Auditor's remuneration - external audit fees
Auditor's remuneration - internal audit fees

1,046
597

937
706

633
597

724
706

Board remuneration
Staff training and development
Bad debts written off
Legal fees

169
62
2
6,704

388
355
358

169
40
6,643

388
317
358

12,773

7,583

11,346

6,231

6.

Total

Administrative expenditure
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
7.

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

Staff costs

Salaries

29,835

28,807

18,881

18,529

Basic
Long-service awards
Acting allowances
Leave pay provision charge

29,163
4
504
164

27,530
513
180
584

18,239
4
504
134

17,252
513
180
584

Social contributions
(Employer’s contributions)

4,332

3,282

3,551

3,194

Medical aid - company contributions
UIF
Provision for post-retirement employee benefit
Defined pension contribution plan

1,019
62
781
2,470

873
92
88
2,229

1,019
62
2,470

873
92
2,229

Directors' remuneration - NLUs
Total
Staff members
8.

1,085

-

-

33,174

22,432

21,723

-

-

74

79

12,610

11,757

Transfers and subsidies

Subsidies
Private Enterprises (Note 28)
9.

1,274
35,441

-

-

Other operating expenses

Travel - local
Lease rentals on operating lease

1,577
2,059

1,537
1,738

390
1,759

716
1,418

Premises
Equipment

1,832
227

1,536
202

1,559
200

1,259
159

Consulting and professional fees
Consumables
Other expenses
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Gain or loss on disposal of assets and liabilities
Projects

1,871
121
188
1,088
18
9,850

2,258
526
123
931
175
7,240

1,253
119
128
875
18
9,850

1,726
508
149
673
175
7,240

Language in Education
Transalation and Interpreting
Literature and Media
Lexicography Development
Linguistic Human Rights
Co-operation with other bodies and Annual Report
Communications and marketing
PanSALB awards
Other project expenses
National Language Bodies
Provincial Language Committees

122
8
102
52
87
634
433
5,364
444
1,206
1,398

372
132
109
20
276
827
378
2,393
87
643
2,003

122
8
102
52
87
634
433
5,364
444
1,206
1,398

372
132
109
20
276
827
378
2,393
87
643
2,003

16,772

14,528

14,392

12,605

71

60

51

46

Total
Maintenance, repairs and running costs - Reconciliation
- Other maintenance and repairs
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
10.

2011

2010

267

199

267

198

888

1,181

470

758

Income from investments

Interest income
Bank deposits
12.

2010

Finance costs

Obligations under finance lease
11.

2011

PanSALB

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk. The carrying amount of
these assets approximates their fair value.
Cash on hand
Bank balances
Short-term deposits
Bank overdraft

1
828
895
(80)

2
1,261
2,884
-

744
1
-

1
1,106
1,388
-

Total

1,644

4,147

745

2,495

Current assets
Current liabilities

1,724
(80)

4,147
-

745
-

2,495
-

1,644

4,147

745

2,495

Finished goods

696

737

-

-

Opening balance
Additions – finished goods
Issued (expensed) – finished goods

737
(41)

561
176
-

-

-

Total

696

737

-

-

Trade debtors
Deposits
Other receivables
Prepayments

147
164
620
-

56
86
344
97

164
8
-

86
3
97

Total

931

583

172

186

13.

14.

Inventories

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

The receivables aging has not been disclosed due to the lack of information from the entities being consolidated as well as the
nature of the receivables.
The receivables are not considered to be impaired unless specifically provided for. The risk exposure of receivables has been
disclosed in note 26.
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
15.

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated

2011
Cost /
Valuation

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Lease improvement/Books
Total

Accumulated
depreciation

2010
Carrying value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

3,147
1,302
2,416
3,035
126

(1,004)
(507)
(1,280)
(1,624)
(113)

2,143
795
1,136
1,411
13

2,004
1,302
2,251
2,985
126

(636)
(356)
(1,059)
(1,418)
(111)

1,368
946
1,192
1,567
15

10,026

(4,528)

5,498

8,668

(3,580)

5,088

PanSALB

2011
Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

2010
Carrying value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures

2,997
984
1,419
2,183

(872)
(290)
(407)
(869)

2,125
694
1,012
1,314

1,888
984
1,368
2,164

(520)
(202)
(326)
(723)

1,368
782
1,042
1,441

Total

7,583

(2,438)

5,145

6,404

(1,771)

4,633

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Consolidated - 2011

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Lease improvement/Books

Opening
balance
1,368
946
1,192
1,567
15
5,088

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

1,140
184
61
-

(67)
(2)
-

(364)
(151)
(173)
(215)
(2)

1,385

(69)

(905)

Impairment
loss

Total
(1)
-

2,143
795
1,136
1,411
13

(1)

5,498

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Consolidated - 2010

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Lease improvements/Books

Opening
balance
1,655
1,098
1,522
1,776
3
6,054

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

17
24
46
14

(7)
(161)
(21)
-

(297)
(152)
(193)
(234)
(2)

1,368
946
1,192
1,567
15

101

(189)

(878)

5,088
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16.

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

Intangible assets

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Controlling entity - 2011

Computer software, other

Opening
balance
266

Additions
496

Disposals

Amortisation
(33)

Impairment
loss
(35)
(157)

Total

Opening
Amortisation
balance
291
(25)

Total

537

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Controlling entity - 2010

Computer software, other
17.

266

Other financial assets

Loans and receivables
University of Venda
The loan represents monies received from PanSALB
by the University, but not yet utilised by Tshivenda
NLU. The loan bears no interest and has no repayment
terms, but by intent is of a short-term nature.
University of Pretoria
University of Fort Hare
University of Stellenbosch
University of Noth West

Non-current assets
Loans and receivables
Current assets
Loans and receivables

269

448

-

-

1,869

1,783

-

-

794

694

-

-

2,421

2,407

-

-

197

343

-

-

5,550

5,675

-

-

269

448

-

-

5,281

5,227

-

-

5,550

5,675

-

-

The loans represent amounts held by the respective universities who administer the funds on behalf of the Section 21 entities
indicated in note. The risk related to these funds is disclosed in note.
For debt securities classified as at fair value through surplus or deficit, the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reportingdate
is the carrying amount.
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18.

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

Payables from exchange transactions

Other payables
Accruals
Leave and bonuses
Operating lease payables

772
6,073
903
219

334
546
1,569
101

373
6,026
637
170

4
473
1,366
39

Total

7,967

2,550

7,206

1,882

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying amounts.
Leave and bonuses are classified as accruals in accordance with the policy adopted by PanSALB.
19.

Finance lease obligations

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

799
1,549

367
1,260

799
1,549

367
1,260

less: future finance charges

2,348
(415)

1,627
(420)

2,348
(415)

1,627
(420)

Present value of minimum lease payments

1,933

1,207

1,933

1,207

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

1,363
570

192
1,015

570
1,363

192
1,015

1,933

1,207

1,933

1,207

1,363
570

1,015
192

1,363
570

1,015
192

1,933

1,207

1,933

1,207

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

It is the entity’s policy to lease certain plant and equipment under finance leases.
Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases escalate at 15% p.a. and no arrangements have been entered
into for contingent rent.
The entity's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. Refer note 15.
20.

Post-retirement employee benefits

The Afrikaans NLU accounts for actuarially determined future medical and group life insurance benefits and provides for the
expected liability in the statement of financial position.
The most recent valuation was done on 31 March 2009 . A medical cost inflation rate of 6.5% (2010: 6.5%) and a discount
rate of 8.25% (2010: 6.50%) were assumed. The average retirement age was set at 60 years (2010: 60 years).
Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows :
Opening balance
- Current service cost
- Past service cost
- Interest cost
- Actuarial loss
- Contributions
Closing balance

(2,890)

(2,802)

-

-

(53)
9
(225)
(693)
181

(50)
9
(217)
170

-

-

(3,671)

(2,890)

-

-
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21.

2010

2011

2010

Cash used in operations

Deficit
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on sale of assets and liabilities
Impairment deficit
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions
Payables from exchange transactions

22.

2011

PanSALB

(8,560)

(1,110)

(7,033)

(1,057)

931
18
157
781

931
175
88

718
18
157
-

673
175
-

41
(348)

145

14

145

5,416

(2,389)

5,327

(1,564)

(2,160)

(799)

(2,560)
(2,624)

Operating lease arrangements

The entity as lessee
The entity has operating leases for offices over periods between 24 and 60 months. At the statement of financial position date
the entity had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

1,087
2,994

658
1,512

1,087
2,994

658
1,512

Total

4,081

2,170

4,081

2,170

23.

Risk management

Maximum credit risk exposure
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and receivables. The entity only deposits cash with major banks
with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Management evaluates credit risk relating to receivables on an ongoing basis. If debtors are independently rated, these ratings
are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the debtor, taking into account
its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail debtors are settled
in cash or using major credit cards.
Exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Receivables – unrated
Cash and equivalents: AA – rating

6,112
1,724

5,810
4,147

Total

7,836

9,957

6,112
-

5,810
-

1,724

4,147

Credit quality of financial assets
The following analysis provides information about the entity’s exposure to credit risk:
Receivables
- Neither past due nor impaired
- Financial assets that have been impaired
Cash and equivalents
Neither past due nor impaired
Liquidity risk
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23.

Risk management

2011

2010

PanSALB
2011

2010

(continued)

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the maturities and contractual cash flows of other financial liabilities which have been discounted.
PanSALB
At 31 March 2011
Finance lease
Payables

Within 1 years
570
8,071

1 to 5 years
1,363
-

Total
1,933
8,071

At 31 March 2010
Finance lease
Payables

Within 1 years
192
2,344

1 to 5 years
1,015
-

Total
1,207
2,344

Interest rate risk
As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
24.

Consolidation

The entity exercises control over the private enterprises mentioned in note 27. The financial results of these enterprises have
been consolidated into the financial statements of Pan South African Language Board.
25.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities
During the year ended 31 March 2011 a CCMA judgement was laid down in favour of a dismissed employee; which stated that
the employee should be reinstated with backpay amounting to R115,000. PanSALB is currently defending the judgment
obtained. Consequently no amounts have been settled or provided since PanSALB's legal team consider the likelihood of the
action against the entity being successful as unlikely, and the case should be resolved within the next two years.
Contingent assets
Subsequent to payment of R 1,679,966 to both the University of Zululand and the IsiZulu NLU prior to 31 March 2010,
proceedings have been initiated by the entity to recover this amount. According to entity's legal advisors, it is probable that the
proceedings will result in the recovery of the full amount and this recovery is virtually certain.

97

Consolidated

Annual Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2011

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
26.

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

Related parties

National Department – Arts and Culture - Department within the same sphere of government
Provincial Department – Sports, Arts and Culture - Department within the same sphere of government
Provincial Department - Health - Department within the same sphere of government
National Language Units – Section 21 entities receiving grants from PanSALB
Chief Executive Officer – member of key management
Deputy Chief Executive Officer – member of key management
Chief Financial Officer – member of key management
Directors – members of key management
Related party balances
At 31 March 2011, there were no outstanding balances between the entity and related parties.
Related party transactions
Grants received from related parties
National Department – Arts and Culture
Provincial Department – Sports, Arts and Culture
Provincial Department – Health

52,781
210
40

50,156
105
-

53,031

50,261

1,127
1,127
1,127
1,127
1,127
1,127
1,343
1,127
1,127
1,127
1,127

1,064
1,064
1,064
1,064
1,064
1,064
1,112
1,070
1,064
1,064
1,064

12,613

11,758

Transfers and subsidies paid to associations incorporated under section 21
Subsidies
Buro van die Woordeboek van die Afrikaanse Taal
Dictionary Unit for South African English
IsiNdebele NLU
IsiXhosa NLU
IsiZulu NLU
Sesotho NLU
Sesotho sa Leboa NLU
Setswana NLU
SiSwati NLU
Tshivenda NLU
Xitsonga NLU
Total
Senior Management remuneration 2011
Salary
Chief Executive Officer – NR Nkosi
Deputy Chief Executive Officer – CL Swepu
Chief Financial Officer – L Sing
- A Netshini
- SP Nkosi
- IS Molosankwe
- Z Feni
- N Ndabezitha
- M Alberts
Total

528
529
450
436
436
436
101
424
67

Expense
allowances
238
148
190
133
144
131
42
176
24

3,407

1,226

Other
benefits

Total
115
224
109
239
211
160
25
106
21

881
901
749
808
791
727
168
706
112

1,210

5,843
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26.

PanSALB

2011

2010

2011

2010

Salary
455
461
392
375
375
375
374
374
370

Expense
allowances
196
171
156
134
154
155
155
155
124

Other
benefits
130
145
126
133
115
115
96
96
117

3,551

1,400

1,073

Related parties (continued)

Senior Management remuneration 2010

Chief Executive Officer – NR Nkosi
Deputy Chief Executive Officer – CL Swepu
Chief Financial Officer – L Sing
- A Netshini
- SP Nkosi
- IS Molosankwe
- Z Feni
- N Ndabezitha
- M Alberts
Total
27.

Total
781
777
674
642
644
645
625
625
611
6,024

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified.
Accrued leave pay and bonuses included in Provisions for the year ended 31 March 2010 has been reclassified to Payables
from exchange transactions, and Inventories has been reclassified to Other Operating expenses to ensure comparability with
the current reporting period.The effects of the reclassifications are as follows:
Statement of financial position
Payables
Provisions
28.

1,508
(1,508)

-

1,302
(1,302)

(7,033)

(1,057)

718
175
267
(656)
(646)
131
470
738
5,133
860
(157)
-

674
175
542
198
(319)
(101)
(27)
758
484
2,236
818
(23)
(4,358)

-

-

Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance

Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the surplus/deficit in the
Net deficit per the statement of financial performance
Adjusted for:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Loss on sale of assets
Increase in provisions
Finance costs
Finance lease payments
Capital assets purchased
Operating lease accrual
Interest received
Other income received
Administrative other operating expenses variance
Staff costs variance
Transfers and subsidies variance
Utilisation of surplus
Total
29.

-

statement of financial performance :

Events after the reporting date

Subsequent to 31 March 2011 a court ruling was obtained for a dismissed employee which requires PanSALB to reinstate the
employee with backpay. PanSALB has decided to appeal the court ruling obtained and consequently no backpay payments will
be made until the appeal is finalised.
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30.

2011

PanSALB

2010

2011

2010

Impairment of financial assets

The entity is not aware of any events or circumstances which will result in the impairment of financial assets for the year ended
31 March 2011.
31.

Key sources of estimate uncertainty and judgements

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:
The determination of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment.
The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates
are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets.
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.
32.

Change in accounting policy

During the year ended 31 March 2011 PanSALB adopted all effective Generally Recognised Accounting Practices. The
adoption of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices 12 - Inventories does not require that consumable stores be accounted
for as inventory. This has resulted in a change in accounting policy, which has been adopted retrospectively. The effect is as
follows:
Inventory
Opening accumulated surplus

33.

-

-

-

(683)
683

-

-

-

-

Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2011, the entity had accumulated deficits of R(2,540) and that the entity's
total liabilities exceed its assets by R(2,540).
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The
entity has committed funds from National Treasury for the following 3 years. Furthermore the entiy expects savings in legal fees
and staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2012 since pending court cases have been finalised subsequent to 31 March
2011 in favour of PanSALB. Management have also embarked on a cost saving exercise to ensure that all liabilities are settled
when due.
The entity will also continue providing the NLUs with funding from its committed funds in accordance with the PanSALB Act.
The NLUs will also embark on a cost saving exercise to ensure that all their liabilities are settled when due.
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List of Board members

2011
Prof Ngubane
MF Sadiki
Dr Malete
Mr Druchen
Z Motsa
P Sobahle
Mrs Gumede
Adv Mdludlu
Prof Mojalefa

2010
Prof Ngubane
MF Sadiki
Dr Malete
Mr Druchen
Dr Yoyo
Z Motsa
P Sobahle
Mrs Gumede
Adv Mdludlu
Ms Lotriet
Prof Mojalefa
Consultants appointed by the Board

Board remumeration

Earnings

Travel
Expenses

Sitting
fees

Total

R '000

R '000

R '000

R '000

Number
of
meetings
attended

32
32
23
11
24
12
13
14
8

-

-

32
32
23
11
24
12
13
14
8

4
4
4
3
4
4
3
3
2

169

-

-

169

31

65
42
33
18
52
27
21
20
3
16
40

3
26
6
8
1
4
-

3
-

68
71
39
18
52
35
21
21
3
20
40

5
5
3
3
2
5
4
3
3
1
2
-

337

48

3

388

36
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DETAILS OF LANGUAGE RIGHTS VIOLATION COMPLAINTS
RECEIVED BY PanSALB DURING THE PERIOD OF 1 APRIL 2010
TO 31 MARCH 2011

GAUTENG
1. PIET UYS / M APLENI (HOME AFFAIRS)
– M046
The complaint is that the permanent residence permit
of a certain Zimbabwean national is written in a
mixture of English and Afrikaans by Home Affairs.
An investigation was conducted and several letters of
demand were sent to Home Affairs. Home Affairs
failed to respond and attend to the matter. It was
decided that the matter be forwarded to the Hearing
Committee for adjudication.
Home Affairs will be called in for a hearing for an
alleged language right violation.
2. PROF. MOJALEFA / SABC 3 – M052
The complaint regards SABC3’s Setswana news at
18:30 being discontinued.
A letter was sent to the respondent on 11 August
2010 but there was no response.
A second letter of demand was sent on 12 September
2010.
SABC will be called in for a hearing on an alleged
language right violation.
3. T NXASANA / ROOSEVELT HIGH SCHOOL –
M053
The complaint was lodged by the father of twins who
are learners at Roosevelt. One of the twins was
reprimanded for speaking isiXhosa with a friend in
class. A meeting was held with the MEC for Education
– Gauteng (Ms Barbara Crecy).
Letters of demand were sent to the principal of
Roosevelt High School and the MEC for Education.
The matter is still under investigation.

4. LM LEPELLE / SABC (KIDS NEWS) – M059
The complaint relates to Kids News on SABC1, which
is broadcast only in Nguni. The complainant feels that
the SABC’s failure to accommodate other African
languages on the programme is disheartening and a
violation of the Constitution.
The matter is still under investigation.
5. LM LEPELLE / AgriTV – M060
The complaint is about AgriTV using only English and
Afrikaans as the medium of communication to the
viewers. The complainant would like AgriTV to clarify
its language policy and whether AgriTV is an English
and Afrikaans only show.
A letter of demand was drafted and sent to AgriTV.
The matter is still under investigation.
6. LM LEPELLE / ETV – M061
The complainant is an ETV viewer who questions why
ETV uses Sesotho and Setswana in their newscasts
and ignores Sepedi, which is numerically bigger than
the Tswana and Sotho language groups.
A letter of demand was drafted and sent to ETV.
The matter is still under investigation.
7. S BRIEF / PRETORIA NORTH POST OFFICE –
M063
The complaint from Ms S Brief regards her postal
address being in English instead of in Afrikaans. When
she filled in the form at the post office, she wrote the
address in Afrikaans but when she received the
renewal forms the address was in English.
The matter is still under investigation.
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NORTHERN CAPE
8. PANSALB / MJG VINGER – M047
The complaint concerns South African Sign Language
(SASL). A deaf student registered and was admitted
to CUT (Central University of Technology) in 2010.
However, no interpreter was being provided for the
student to enable her to attend classes and
participate fully like her counterparts. The only
language for the deaf is SASL as they cannot hear
English. The student’s language needs are not
catered for and it is highly unlikely that she will
succeed in her studies.
After several letters of demand and meetings with
CUT executive management no cooperation was
received from CUT.
CUT will be called in for a hearing for an alleged
language right violation.
9. NKWALI NOLUNDI / E VAN TONDER – M048
The complaint was lodged by Ms Nolundi, an
employee at Roads and Public Works Northern Cape
Province. Ms Nolundi reports to Ms Van Tonder, the
financial director of the department. Ms Nolundi
consulted Ms Van Tonder regarding challenges within
the department. The first advice Ms Van Tonder gave
the complainant was to learn to speak Afrikaans
because the complainant was not approachable to
her subordinates as they did not feel comfortable
expressing themselves in English. She added that
75% of the Northern Cape population was Afrikaans
speaking and very few people spoke the
complainant’s language, isiXhosa. The complainant
maintains that she does not promote her language
within the department: she only speaks English which
she feels is the medium of communication. The
complainant further states that she feels lonely,
isolated, discriminated against, depressed and foreign
in her own country because of a language.
At the conclusion of the investigation the finding was
that there was a dispute of facts between the parties,
such that it would be best for the parties to be called
before the Hearing Committee to answer the
allegations.
The matter was forwarded to the Hearing Committee
for adjudication.

10. I MMUSI / NORTHERN CAPE MUNICIPALITIES
AND DEPARTMENTS – M056
This complaint was lodged by a physically challenged
man in the Northern Cape, his concern being that deaf
and mute people in the district were being neglected in
workshops, training, interviews, information gathering
and other events in their region because of a lack of
Sign Language Interpreters in different departments
and municipalities.
The matter was extensively dealt with by the
PanSALB Northern Cape Provincial Office. The Legal
Unit is awaiting a report from the Northern Cape
Office.
The matter is still under investigation.
11. S MANI / UMHLOBO WENENE – M057
The complaint lodged by members of the Jan
Kempdorp community in the Northern Cape regards
the isiXhosa language being suppressed. The
complainants had communicated with Umhlobo
Wenene to broadcast in their area, but the broadcast
extends only to Kimberley.
The matter was extensively dealt with by the
PanSALB Northern Cape Provincial Office. The Legal
Unit is awaiting a report from Northern Cape Office.
The matter is still under investigation.
12. P KROUTZ / SAPS – M058
The complaint from Mr Kroutz concerns the SAPS
recruitment tests and policies which are available only
in English regardless of the dominant language
spoken in the Northern Cape Province.
The matter is still under investigation.
13. L KONDILE / PRIEL VILLAGE SCHOOL – M055
This complaint relates to schoolchildren no longer
being taught in their mother tongue, Setswana, after a
merger between their school and an Afrikaansspeaking school.
A request for further particulars was sent to the
complainant.
The matter is still under investigation.
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14. C KALIMASHE / UMHLOBO WENENE AND
OTHERS – M064
This complaint relates to the isiXhosa-speaking
people residing in Vredendal, the main town of
Matzikama Municipality on the West Coast. The
complainant alleges that isiXhosa speakers are being
deprived of an opportunity to express themselves in
their mother tongue, as a translator has to be
arranged when an isiXhosa speaker goes to the
municipality, hospital or clinic, and children are being
taught through the medium of Afrikaans at schools.
In 2009 the complainant also wrote to Umhlobo
Wenene, requesting the station to cover their area in
its broadcasts, explaining that Umhlobo Wenene
would so help them experience the 2010 World Cup
in their own language as the SABC had promised.
Most importantly, access to the station’s broadcasts
would help them preserve their language and culture
– but in vain.
The matter is still under investigation.

WESTERN CAPE
15. A HANEKOM / DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
– M049

FREE STATE
17. M SEEKOEI / PANSALB FREE STATE – M051
The complaint from Miss Seekoei to the Provincial
Office regarded Setswana not being promoted and
developed as one of the 11 official languages.
A meeting was held with the relevant stakeholders at
the Provincial Office.
Legal advice was also sent to the complainant by Adv.
Adebola on 12 August 2010.
The file was closed on 12 August 2010.
18. PI MOLLETT / BROADCASTING SERVICES –
M062
The complaint relates to dissatisfaction among the
Khoesan Bataung Lewish Community that the
Khoesan language is not being broadcast via radio or
television. The complainants feel that the Khoesan
language should be integrated into the 11 official
languages, otherwise they experience a feeling of
isolation from the national community.
The matter is still under investigation.

NORTH WEST

The complainant needed advice from our Legal Unit.
Legal advice was drafted and sent to the complainant
on 29 July 2010.

19. GT APPOLUS / DEPARTMENT OF SPORT,
ARTS AND CULTURE – M065

The file was closed on 11 August 2010.

A letter of demand has been sent to the respondent.

The complainant, Mr Appolus, is Legal Adviser to the
Nama-Khoe Cultural Linguistic Group in the North
West Province. According to the complainant, on 28
January 2011 the Nama-Khoe Cultural and Linguistic
Group in the Vryburg area received an invitation from
the Department of Sport, Arts and Culture to attend
the International Mother Language Day celebration.
The complainant contends that the programme was
predominantly in Setswana with no attempt at
accommodating people from other ethnic or linguistic
groups, who were unable to understand a single word
of Setswana but had also been invited to the event.
The complainant argues that the celebration was for
International Mother Language Day and not Setswana
Mother Language Day.

The matter is still under investigation.

A letter of demand has been sent to the respondent.

16. XI NELANI / SEA POINT HIGH SCHOOL – M054
The complainant, Mr Nelani, has a child who attends
Sea Point High school. The complainant requested at
the School Governing Body (SGB) meeting in August
2010 that isiXhosa be taught as a school subject. The
SGB’s language policy does not allow for isiXhosa to
be taught as a language despite the school being
situated in a province where the majority of children
speak isiXhosa.

The matter is still under investigation.
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